
 
 
 

Health and Well Being Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: Tuesday, 18 January 2011 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop 
Tel: 0151 691 8501 
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

/ PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
  
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the Health and Well Being Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held on 1 November, 2010. 
 

3. PRESENTATION ON THIRD QUARTER PERFORMANCE 2010/11  
 
 The Quarter 3 Performance Report on activities relevant to Health and 

Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Committee is available to view in 
the web library and a presentation will be made by the Interim Director 
of Adult Social Services. This will incorporate a report on the impact of 
the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review and funding 
allocation for Wirral’s Adult Social Services. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
4. TRANSFORMATION OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES - PERSONAL 

BUDGETS PROJECT PHASE 2 EVALUATION (Pages 7 - 38) 
 
5. PROGRESS REPORT ON REIMBURSEMENT IN RELATION TO 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE ACT 1998 (PIDA) (Pages 39 - 44) 
 
6. TRANSITION SERVICES - UPDATE REPORT (Pages 45 - 56) 
 
7. CARE QUALITY COMMISSION - UPDATE PRESENTATION  
 
 The Interim Director of Adult Social Services will give a presentation. 

 
8. CONSULTATION TASK FORCES AND PLANNED SERVICE 

CHANGES BETWEEN JANUARY - MARCH 2011 - UPDATE 
PRESENTATION  

 
 The Interim Director of Adult Social Services will give a presentation. 

 
9. COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT FROM THE VOLUNTARY 

SECTOR (Pages 57 - 64) 
 
10. LOCAL IMPACT OF GOVERNMENT PLANS FOR FUTURE OF NHS 

- UPDATE PRESENTATION  
 
 The Chief Executive of NHS Wirral and the Director of Public Health 

will give a presentation incorporating an update on the Public Health 
White Paper. 
 

11. COMMITTEE REFERRAL - SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD - 26 
OCTOBER, 2010 (Pages 65 - 66) 

 
 At its meeting on 26 October, 2010, the Scrutiny Programme Board 

discussed the issue of scrutiny training and, amongst other things, 
resolved that the Health and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be requested to invite the Director of Public Health to 
provide an overview of health scrutiny and to invite all Members of the 
Council to attend. 
 
The Committee is therefore asked to consider this request. 
 
A copy of the Scrutiny Programme Board minute is attached. 
 

12. WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 67 - 78) 
 
13. MINUTES OF THE CHESHIRE AND WIRRAL COUNCIL'S JOINT 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Pages 79 - 86) 
 
 The Committee is requested to note the minutes of the Cheshire and 

Wirral Council’s Joint Scrutiny Committee held on 11 October, 2010. 
 
 



14. FORWARD PLAN  
 
 The Forward Plan for the period January to April 2011 has now been 

published on the Council’s intranet/website. Members are invited to 
review the Plan prior to the meeting in order for the Committee to 
consider, having regard to the Committee’s work programme, whether 
scrutiny should take place of any items contained within the Plan and, 
if so, how it could be done within relevant timescales and resources. 
 

15. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	����
�����������	�����
������������������

�
��������	�
���������	��

�
��������� ����������� ���������������������
�
� ������������  ���������

��!������
"�#�����
$����������
�
�

���������
��%������&�
!� ����
�
�

'�(������� ������������ )�"�������������(������&�)�"��������
'�%�����������(������&�*�$������
�

��+�(����� � '�,������-
.����
$���/���$�������0�����������1�����������(���
$� �����1�����

�
�2� 	�������

�
*���������/�������������������������������������&������������������������&�3����
 ����/���������/���&������)����������&����4���������������/���� �������5������,�����&�
$�����������5������'�������6�$����7(����������������������������(�������� ����.���
���&��������������������������������)�������������/���������/����&�������&�����6��
�

�8� ����������������
����������������
�������������
�
*����������������������������������&����������������������&����������������6�
�
$��� ��/�� �7(������� ��������� ����� &����/���� ���� ���������� �&� 3����  ���� ��
��(������ �((�������� ���� ����� ���� ��� &���� ���� (���� �&� '�������� �&� )����� $������
$�������� /����/���� /��� �������/��� ��� ������ ���� (������� ���������� ����.�� ��
(���������((�������6�
�
*������������������������������������&��7(�����������������/�����������������&�
���� 9(������� ���� )((��������� �������� ��� �4� 1�������� ��	�� /����� ����
������������((����������������((���������(�����������������.����(��6�
�
*���-������'���������&�)�����$������$���������������������������������������������
���� ����� �((������� ��� ��� -������ '�������� ��� /����� ���� ��� ������� ��� �� ������.���
��(�������������/������(��������������:�����������(���������((��������/������6�
,�� ��&����� ������������ ����� ���/������������� ��(���� ���.� ��� ������7���������
/���� �� &���� �������� �&� /����� ���� '�(������� ������� ��� ��� ��� �������� ����
������������������������&������������������/��������������������(�����������������6�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



5�� ���
����� ���� �� ������� �� ������������ �� ��������� �� ������
	�����
�
�������/������.���������������/������������������(�����������(��:�����������������
���������������������������������������������������&������������������������������
/���������/���6��������/�������������������������������������������(�����������
(������(�� 	2� �&� ���� 1������/� ���� $�������� ���������� %������ /������� ����� /����
���:���������(�����/��(���������������/�������������������������������������&��������
���������������������������������&�����/��((��������������6�
�

��������������������/�������6�
�

5	� ���������
�
�������/���� ��;������� ��� �������� ����������� �&� ����������� �&� ����,������ ����
 ����"�����1������/�����$������������������������8�$�(���������	�6�
�
-�����(�����&�������	5�<�����=��1(������%���.�=�������������&������������������&���
����(����������+�(����������=���(�������������������/���������������>�������������
��������)������ ����������((�����������������������(�������6�
�
-�� ���(���� �&� ������ 	2� <����� ?������� ��������� -��(������� %�(���=�� �����������
"��������� ��&������ ��� ���� �������(� �&� ���� /��.���� ����(� /����� ������� ������
�����������)���"���������������&���������(������������������*����$��������!��&&����
 ���6�
�
-�����(�����&�����������������'�����,������&�������������&���������)������������.�/���
(�����������������������������-
.����(�����������6�
�
��������� ��!"#��$%&�'#� #�� #!��"%����"(�)�(�)#�*� #!��(+)$#���%��",,-�����
"��"�'�--�'#�-�'�-�.�
�

5�� �����������������������	��
�
*���-������'���������&�)�����$������$��������(�������������(����/��������������
������������/����������������(������&�������'���������*����������*�����(����
/�����/�����������������3���������	�������������&�1&&�������&�
,$� ������� ������
0���������� *��������,��(����� @����������*����� ���� ����'�(������� �&�)����� $������
$�������6�*�����(������������������&������(������������&�$���������������/�������
��((��������������������)���������0�������)0����(��������&��������&�����������
��(������������������������������������&������������6�
�
$������  ���� ��&������ ��� ���� ������� ������ �&� < ����=� ���A���� ���� ��� �������� ���
���(����� ������������ ��� /����� ������ ���� ��������� ���� (������ &��� ���� �((������ ���
���(����� ������������ &����/���� ���� ��������� �����/�� ���� &�������� �&� /����� ���� �����
(���������/���������������&�������&�����$������������,����������-���������1������/�
����$��������������������B�����������8��������C4���&����6�
�
'�� $��������.���:������������ '�������� &��� ���� �������� ��������� ���� *���� ������
'�������� �&� 
������� ���� ���/�&�����  ������ 0���������� *�������� ,��(������ 
,$�
@����������*��������(����������������&�����������7(������������/��.��&�����
��)0����/� ���� ��������&���������������&������������/������������������������ �����

Page 2



����������������/������������������������������.�(�������&����(������������
����������� ����� ��� ���6� ����������� ����� ���.� (����� �&� ������ /��� ���� ����� ���
���(�����&���������������	D�����6�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��-�,�-#�%��)�#��.�
�

55� ���������������������������������
�
*��� '�������� �&� ������� ,������ ��������� �� ��(���� ��� ���� 
,$�  ������ )�������
��������/����������������������������+��������������(�����������������������
������������������������������������+�����������������6��
�
*��� (������� ������� ��� �������� ���� 
�������� -��������� ��� ��������� ���� ����� �&�
�������������������(���������������(���	��������&�����������(�(����������������������
����&����/�����������������
�
•� '����������������(��������(�����������������������������&��������������
•� -������������(����������(��������������������������(��������
•� -���������� ���� ��(������ �&� �������+������ ����7�&�������� ��������� ���� ���(�
(���������+����������

•� -(������������������������(������
•� -����������(����������&�����������������
•� �������������������������������������:����������������
•� -������������(����������&���&�������������/�����������������
�
*��� ��(���� ��������� ��(�������� ����� /���� ������������� ������������ ���� &�������
���/�������������������&�����������/������/������/�6�
�
%��(�����������������&�������������������'������������'����.���:����������
����� ������/��� ��� ������ �&� ����������� �&&����� �&� ��A������� ���� ��(������� ��������
���� �������� ���������+����������� ���������� ������ ��������� ������� ���� ������+���������
�������6�*�����(���������������������.��(��(����/�����&��������������&���������
�����������&���������������������������������(�������6�
�
*��������������������������&����/��(���(������������������������������������������&�
�����������6�
�
���������  � �!"#� #!�� -�,�-#� %�� )�#��� ")�� "� /$-#!�-� -�,�-#� %�� %-�$0!#� #�� #!��
�"-'!*�1233�(��#+)0��/�#!+����((+##��.�
�

5D� ���	�������������������4����������������
�
*��������� ��&����������������������#����������� &���>���������������������
)������ ������ ���� ����� ���� �(�������� ��� ����/��� ��/���� ���� ������� ��� ������� ����
������6�
�
*��� �������� ��������� �� ;��������� ��(���� &��� >��������� ���� �������� )������
 �������>�) ���������<,���&���,��(����=���������/�����������������������&�3����
���$�(���������	���������������	45���&������6�*���������������������D5������������
��������������������������������������.�����������������/����������6�
�

Page 3



*������������7(������������������������������>�) �&�����������������������������
������������;���������&���������������(����������(����������7�����������������&�������
�����&���/������/��������������/����&������������6�
�
���������  � �!"#� #!�� -�,�-#� %�� )�#��� ")�� #!�� +)/�-("#+�)� �)� #!�� ��-�+'�� %��
-�5$��#���/-�(����	.�
�

5B� ����������*�����	������������6��������������
�
*���'���������&��������,�������������������(������� �������������.��������(������
<?����$��(� �����=�/������ �������������������$��(�$�.����$�������� �����������.����
&�����(����������������������/��������������������������(�������/���/���������
���������������/����
,$���������6�$�����������������&�������(�����/������������
&��� ��������/���� �528� (��(���� 4�E� �&� /���/���� &��� ������ �&� ��(��������� ����
���(����������������&���������6�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��-�,�-#�%��)�#��.�
�

54� ����������������������������
�
*��� -������ '�������� �&� )����� $������ $�������� ��������� �� ��(���� �(������� ����
�������� ��� (�������� ��� ������(� ��/� ������� ������ ���������� &��� (��������
��((���� ��� (���� �&� ���� �����&�������� �&� ������ ������� ��������6� *����� ����������
�������� %����������� ���� 
������� ,��� ������ $�((������ ������� ���� ���������
$�((����(�����������(��(�������������/������6�
�
*��� ��(���� &������� ��� ���� �������� ��� ���� �7������� �������� �(���&��������� ��� ����
�����7�� �&� �������� ���� ��.��� ���� ���� �������� �����&�������� ������� &��� )�����
$������ $�������6� *��� (��(����� �������� /���� ����������� ���������� ��� �(�����
��&�����������������&�������������&&������������������&���(��(�����������������
�����.��������������������������6�*������/�����������������/��������������(��������	�
)(������		6�
�
*���'�����������(����������������&��������������(����������/������������������
�&� ���� �������� &��������� (��������� ������ &����� ��� ���� �������� �&� ���� �����������
�������&�������(��(���/���/����(�������������&+&������������������ ���������������
�����������������/����������������������������6�*�������������������(������������
�&&��� &��������� ��((���� ��� ������ (��(��� /���� ������ ���������� ���� ���6� *��� ��/�
���������/���������������������&������������.�������������������������������(���������
��������������(�������(������������&&�������&��������(���&��������������&��������������
�����/������.��������������6�
�
��������� �� �!"#� #!�� ��((+##��� )�#�� #!�� ,-�0-���� +)� ������,+)0� #!�� )�7�
'�)#-"'#�� /�-� ���+��)#+"�� ")�� �$-�+)0� ��(�� �"-�� ")�� ��-��)"�� �$,,�-#� +)�
,��,��8���7)�!�(��.�
�

5C� ��������������������4������������������1232�1233��
�
��.��@�/�����,�����&�$��������@��������������&���������������(�������������������
(�������������������� ���� ����������� &�����	�F��		� ��� �����������;�����������.���
(��:����� /����� /���� ��������� ��� ���� ,������ ���� ���+"�����1������/� ���� $��������
�������6�

Page 4



�
,����&���������������(��&������������������/����������7��������������������������
�����7(���������������(��&��������������/�����/����=���������������������������
������������������������������.�����������������������������������
�
•� $�((����������������
,$�$��(�$�.����$���������
•� 9������������&���/�������������������������
•� ���(�����((������/����)���������*����������
•� $�&�����������������������/��������D�������
•� $�&���������������������������/�������2������
�
-�� ���(�����&� ���� &���������(����������.��@�/������������� ����.��� &���������(���������
����������������&&�������������������������(�������������������(��:�����������(���6��
�
%��(����������������=����������.��@�/�����7(���������������/����7(�����������
���� ������ �&� ��((������ (��������� �&� (��(��� ������ ����� ������������ ����� /�����
��������������(��(���/������((�������������������������������/�������&���������
���������������������������������6�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��,-���)#"#+�)�%��)�#��.�
�

52� ����������������������������������������
�����
�
*��� �������� ����������� ���� &����/���� ������� �2� �������������� *��.� @�������
/����������������&�������������$����������������"�����������$�(���������	��
��������������������/�����������������������&������������������
��
G)����������&������������������������������&�������������&����*��.�@�������/���������
����������(��������������������������&���������������������������������/���������/�
��� ���������� ���������� �������6� ,�� (��(����� ����� ���� $�������� �������� "�����
���������������������������������/���(�����(����������.�����������������.�&�����������
������&�������������������������(�������(������������/���&����/��������������������
���� �((�������� �&� ���� *��.� @����� ������� ��������� /���� ���� ��������� ���
�������������&�������������������������������(���������*��.�@����������6�
��
��������7(��������������/��������������������((��(������&����������&�����������
&����� /������ ������ ����� ��� ��� ��;������� ��� ���� ��������� 1������/� ���� $��������
��������6�
��
%��������H�*�����������������&�����������������������������������������*��.�@���������
��&������ ��� ����� �&� ���� ������ 1������/� ���� $�������� ��������� ���� ����� ���
��;�������������.���&������������������������������������/�����&����/����������������6I�
�
*����������������� ���������/����������(��&�����������������������(������� �����
�����������������������������������.�������-������'���������&�)�����$������$��������
�������������(�����������3���������������&�������������6�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��(+)$#���/�#!���'-$#+)9���,�-#��-�0-"((��
�"-��%��)�#���
")��#!���)#�-+(��+-�'#�-��/���$�#���'+"����-�+'����$%(+#�"�-�,�-#��)�#!��("##�-�
#��#!��:")$"-9�(��#+)0��/�#!+����((+##��.�
�
�

Page 5



58� 	�6�����������
�
*��� �������� ��������� ��� �(����� ��� ���� /��.� (�������� /����� ��������� ����
(��(�����������������������������&��������������������(�������6�*�����������&������
��� ���� ��(���� ��� ,����������� ���� ,������ /����� /����� ��/� ��� �������� ��� ����
3�������������6�
��
-����������������������������������(������������&����/���������/�����������
�
•� )� ��(���� ��� ���� �(���� �&� ����!��������=�� ��(���������� $(�������%����/�
����&������������������&��� �����=��)�����$������$���������3��������������6�

�
•� )� ��(���� ��� ���� ������ �&� �((���������� &��� ���������� F� 9>%� ���� ��/� ��� /�����
�&&��������'�(��������3��������������6�

�
•� @����/��(���(��������������������������(�����������������������������6�
�
*��� ������ ��&������ ��� ���� �?��  ��.���� !���(� /����� /����� ��(���� ���.� ��� ����
�������� ���3���������������� ����� ����'�������>����������������������� ���� &�����
�����������/���������������������������������&�
������6�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��-�,�-#�")��"��+#+�)��#��#!��7�-;�,-�0-"((��%��)�#��.�
�

D�� ��	����������
�
*������������������������������������/�����@��/���������(����������������������
������&�����������������������������������������������=��/��.�(��������/�������
���������������� ��.��(������&����� ���������������/������ �������������� �&�������/� ���
��������������/��������������������������������������6�
��
��������� ��!"#�#!��/�-7"-��,�")�%��)�#��.�
�
�

Page 6



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
18 JANUARY 2011 
 
REPORT OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
TRANSFORMATION OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES - PERSONAL BUDGETS 
PROJECT PHASE 2 EVALUATION 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides information on the progress being made on personal 
budgets in Wirral.  It provides an evaluation of phase 2 and details of phase 3.  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members are asked to note the contents of the 
report and the progress being made on the implementation of personal budgets 
in Wirral. 
 
This item falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Introduction 
 

1.1 This report provides information on the progress being made on personal 
budgets in Wirral, providing details of evaluation of phase 2 of the personal 
budgets project and details of phase 3.  Personal budgets are just one way 
of approaching the bigger personalisation agenda and form part of a 
different offer Adult Social Services will deliver to residents in Wirral.  This 
includes the use of assistive technology, rehabilitation and integrated 
locality working practices.   

 
2 Progress on Personal Budgets 
  
 Background 
 
2.1 The Governments commitment to date has been to pilot individual 

budgets1 in 13 local areas.  This was set out in the Health White Paper 
‘Our Heath, Our Care, Our Say’.  In addition, Local Authorities were being 
encouraged during 2006/2007 to give people greater choice and control of 
the services they use. 

 

                                            
1 Individual budgets bring together a variety of income streams from different agencies including 
Independent Living Fund, Continuing/Joint Health Care, Community Care, Access to Work or 
Supporting People funding to provide a sum for an individual, who has control over the way it is 
spent to meet his or her support needs.  A personal budget is an allocation of money that is purely 
from social care funding sources and used to purchase support from the public, private or 
voluntary sector.  In Wirral’s pilot phase one has been testing out the use of personal budgets. 
. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 

2.2 The central idea behind the individual budgets concept is to place the 
person who is supported, or provided with services, at the centre of the 
process. They should have the power to decide the nature of their own 
support.  The concept builds on the successful features of direct payments 
and other initiatives to develop self directed care.  

 
Personal Budgets 

 
2.3 A personal budget is the amount of money that is available to individuals 

from Wirral Council to help meet eligible social care needs.  It also takes 
into account the needs of family carer’s where appropriate. 

 
2.4 A personal budget is calculated following the completion of a 

straightforward assessment where discussion takes place with individuals 
about the support that is required and how much money the Council will 
contribute to meeting assessed needs, after the individuals own financial 
resources have been taken into account.  A personal budget will be offered 
in most cases after immediate needs have been met, for example, once 
individuals have received support through the HART (re-ablement) or 
Assistive Technology service. 

 
2.5 With a Personal Budget individuals can: 

• know up-front how much money is available from the Council to 
meet assessed needs 

• decide how that money can be used 
• get the support and advice to make the choices that best meet 

needs 
• know how much to contribute financially 

 
 Implementing Personal Budgets in Wirral 
 
2.6 Wirral Council has been working on the concept of personal budgets since 

November 2007 and a project approach consisting of 3 phases to 
introduce personal budgets to people in Wirral began in January 2009.  

 
2.7 Wirral’s personal budgets project (phase 1) commenced on 26 January 

2009.  17 people from mental health, learning disabilities, physical 
disabilities and older people from across 11 wards in Wirral were chosen 
to be part of phase 1.  These people had approached the Department and 
expressed a wish to be considered and were from the outset prepared to 
share the learning as part of the project.  The project was developed 
based on the knowledge from the 13 national pilot sites and ran for 9 
months.  Lessons learnt from phase 1 were incorporated into phase 2 and 
reported to Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 19 
January 2010. 

 
2.8 Phase 2 of the project was undertaken with a much larger cohort of 

people.  Cabinet agreed a minimum of 200 people on which to test the 
resource allocation system prior to rolling out personal budgets as part of 
the phase 3 of the project.  Phase 2 commenced in December 2009 and 
ran for 9 months in Birkenhead locality, Adults with Learning Disability 
Services and survivors of stroke leaving hospital. 

Page 8



 

  
 

Phase 2 Evaluation 
 
2.9 The evaluation of the personal budgets project phase 2 has now been 

completed.  The purpose of the evaluation was to record the effectiveness 
of the processes and documentation used, and to collate the views and 
experiences of people who use services, carer’s, staff and identified others 
related to the project.  This report provides information around the 
approach taken to evaluate personal budgets evaluation phase 2 and 
details of the findings.  The evaluation report is attached at the appendix. 

 
2.10 Phase 2 of the personal budgets project has proved that the involvement 

of all stakeholders in the co-design of processes and systems is critical to 
ensuring sustained ownership.  A product of phase 2 was to deliver a re-
designed business process for delivering personal budgets which has 
been achieved.  The re-design has taken place with a wide range of 
stakeholders, through extensive testing and 188 staff has been briefed on 
the new process which has been delivered by a customer, reform unit 
staff, access and assessment staff and finance and performance staff. 

 
2.11 Phase 2 has positively impacted on the delivery of key performance 

indicators on self directed assessment (8858) and self directed support 
(NI130) and Putting People First Milestone 2 (self directed support and 
personal budgets).  Customers have reported improved outcomes from 
phase 2 with 81% of customers reporting that their personal budget made 
a difference to whether they felt supported with dignity and 74% felt safer 
at home.  74% of carers reported that they felt their personal budget had 
improved their quality of life. 

 
2.12 Further evidence suggests that individuals benefit more once they have 

had their personal budget for six months with 100% of customers from 
phase 1 of the personal budgets project reporting that the personal budget 
made a difference to the control they had over their support compared to 
when they first had the personal budget.  25% of phase 1 customers 
originally reported that the personal budget had made a difference to their 
health with 75% reporting it had made a difference after six months of 
having a personal budget. 

 
 Phase 3 Project 
 
2.13 Learning from Phase 1 and Phase 2 is being taken forward into Phase 3 of 

the personal budgets project.  On 4 November 2010, Cabinet agreed the 
resource allocation of £1.62 to be rolled out from 11 November 2010 which 
meant that the final stage (phase 3) of the personal budgets project could 
proceed.  Phase 3 will see the offer of personal budgets made to all 
eligible residents in Wirral.  The aim of the phase 3 personal budgets 
project is to ensure that at least 30% of eligible people in Wirral receive a 
personal budget by the end of March 2011 which is an indication that 
people are receiving personalised support to enable them to have more 
choice and control over their lives. 

 

Page 9



 

2.14 Given the significance of this project phase 3 will continue to be project 
managed and the project board will continue to be chaired by the Interim 
Director of Adult Social Services.  The work to be taken forward as part of 
the phase 3 project is identified in the appendix, section 14.  Phase 3 will 
ensure that personal budgets is consistently embedded within day to day 
working practices using the new business processes created during phase 
1 and phase 2.  In addition phase 3 will ensure new learning is embedded 
into working documentation and phase 3 is evaluated in the same manner 
as phase 1 and phase 2. 

 
3 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The resource allocation system (£1.62) was agreed by Cabinet on 4 

November 2010 to be rolled out on 11 November.  This is being monitored 
on a monthly basis by the personal budgets project board chaired by the 
Interim Director of Adult Social Services. 

 
4 Staffing Implications 
 
4.1 There will be an impact on the role and function for the social care 

workforce.  Indications from Wirral’s phase 1 and phase 2 project show 
that heavy investment in staff is required to support them with adapting to 
this radical change.  This support has and continues to be provided. 

 
5 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
5.1 Phase 1 and 2 were subject to an initial equality impact assessment to 

ensure that vulnerable people and those from minority groups are not 
adversely affected by the implementation of personal budgets and self 
directed support. 

 
6 Community Safety Implications 
 
6.1 Personal budgets and self directed support provides a more holistic 

approach to addressing an individual’s need.  By empowering individuals 
to take control of their support package it is likely that they will be able to 
identify more clearly issues which concern them about their own safety 
within the community. A process of managing risk is currently being 
developed. 

 
7 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
7.1 There are no local Agenda 21 implications. 
 
8 Planning Implications 
 
8.1 There are no planning issues from this report. 
 
9 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
9.1 There are no direct anti poverty implications from this report. 
 

Page 10



 

10 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
10.1 Personal budgets and self directed support enables people to be eligible 

for a range of funding streams, greater control and choice over their 
personal budget.  In general people benefiting from these developments 
are likely to be amongst the most socially excluded in society.  As a result, 
they will have more active participation in their support arrangements and 
enhance their status with providers.  

 
11 Local Member Support Implications 
 
11.1 Personal budgets and self directed support has Wirral wide implications. 
 
12 Health Implications 
 
12.1 There are no health implications directly arising from this report.  However, 

personal health budgets are currently being piloted nationally. 
 
13 Background Papers 
 
 Cabinet report dated 4 November 2010 accessed at 

http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=3062
&Ver=4  

  
14 Recommendations 
 

That: - 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members note the contents of this 
report and the current progress of implementing personal budgets in 
Wirral. 

 
 
HOWARD COOPER 
Interim Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 

Personal Budgets 
Phase 2 

Evaluation 2010 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wirral 

Appendix 

Page 13



 2

 

Contents 
 
 
Executive Summary …………………………………………….….. 3 
 
 
Acknowledgements …………………………………………….…… 4 
 
 
‘Putting People First’ ………………………………………….……. 4 
 
 
Background ………………………………………………………….. 5 
 
 
Phase 1: Evaluation ………………………………………………... 6 
 
 
Phase 2: Research Methods …………………………………….… 7 
 
 
Findings: Customer Feedback …………………………………..… 8 
 
 
Findings: Financial Impact ……………………………………….… 11 
 
 
Findings: Performance Information ………………………….....… 13 
 
 
Findings: Training and Support ……………………………….…… 15 
 
 
Findings: Involvement of Relevant Stakeholders …………...…... 16 
 
 
Findings: Local, Regional and National Learning ………….….… 18 
 
 
Conclusions …………………………………………………..……… 19 
 
 
Recommendations for Phase 3 …….………………………...…… 21 
 
 
Appendix ………………………………………….……………….… 23 
 
 

Page 14



 3

1 Executive Summary 
 
Personal Budgets are a new way of giving individuals greater control and flexibility over 
the way assessed needs are met.  A Personal Budget is the amount of money that is 
available to individuals from Wirral Council to help meet eligible social care needs.  It also 
takes into account the needs of family carer’s where appropriate.  A Personal Budget is 
calculated following the completion of a straightforward assessment where discussion 
takes place with individuals about the support that is required and how much money the 
council will contribute to meeting assessed needs, after the individuals own financial 
resources have been taken into account.  A Personal Budget will be offered in most cases 
after immediate needs have been met, for example, once individuals have received 
support through the HART (re-ablement) or Assistive Technology service. 
 
With a Personal Budget individuals can: 

•••• know up-front how much money is available from the council to meet assessed 
needs 

•••• decide how that money to be used 
•••• get the support and advice to make the choices that best meet needs 
•••• know how much to contribute financially. 

 
The Department of Adult Social Services has been working on the concept of Personal 
Budgets since November 2007.  A project approach consisting of 3 Phases to introduce 
Personal Budgets to people in Wirral has been taken.  On 26th January 2009 Phase 1 
began to test out Personal Budgets to a small cohort of 17 people.  During the initial 
stages the department worked with those involved in the project to help shape and learn 
from people’s experiences of having a Personal Budget. 
 
Phase 2 of the project was then undertaken with a much larger cohort of people. The 
evaluation of Personal Budgets Project Phase 2 has now been completed.  The purpose of 
the evaluation was to record the effectiveness of the processes and documentation used, 
and to collate the views and experiences of people who use services, carer’s, staff and 
identified others related to the project.  This report provides information around the 
approach taken to evaluate Personal Budgets evaluation Phase 2 and details of the 
findings. 
 
Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets project has proved that the involvement of all 
stakeholders in the co-design of processes and systems is critical to ensuring sustained 
ownership.  A product of Phase 2 was to deliver a re-designed business process for 
delivering Personal Budgets which has been achieved.  The re-design has taken place 
with a wide range of stakeholders, through extensive testing and 188 staff has been 
briefed on the new process which has been delivered by a customer, reform unit staff, 
access and assessment staff and finance and performance staff. 
 
Phase 2 has positively impacted on the delivery of key performance indicators on self 
directed assessment (8858) and self directed support (NI130) and Putting People First 
Milestone 2 (self direct support and Personal Budgets).  Customers have reported 
improved outcomes from Phase 2 with 81% of customers reporting that their Personal 
Budget made a difference to whether they felt supported with dignity and 74% felt safer at 
home.  74% of carers reported that they felt their Personal Budget had improved their 
quality of life. 
 

Page 15



 4

Further evidence suggests that individuals benefit more once they have had their Personal 
Budget for six months with 100% of customers from Phase 1 of the Personal Budgets 
project reporting that the Personal Budget made a difference to the control they had over 
their support compared to when they first had the Personal Budget.  25% of Phase 1 
customers originally reported that the Personal Budget had made a difference to their 
health with 75% reporting it had made a difference after six months of having a Personal 
Budget. 
 
 

2 Acknowledgements 
 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank all those involved in Phase 2 of the 
Personal Budgets project especially those people who use services and carers who 
embarked upon this journey with us.  Special thanks should be acknowledged to 
Birkenhead locality, Adults with Learning Disability teams and Sue Lowe, customer 
representative, who have worked ceaselessly to test and re-test the re-designed business 
processes, providing appropriate challenge and ensuring that we learn together the new 
job to be undertaken – that of providing personalised support. 
 
 

3 ‘Putting People First 
 
Ivan Lewis, the Minister for Social Care has described Personal Budgets as “a revolution 
in terms of the way we seek to offer services to people in this country in the future.  This 
will be the mainstream of the social care system in this country, the radical transformation 
of social care putting those who use services and their family members in the driving seat, 
providing control, choice and power”. 
 
Wirral Council Department of Adult Social Services have implemented a transformation 
agenda, which includes personalisation.  It has a major focus on the provision of effective 
and efficient services.  This means a change agenda for adult social care, service 
remodelling, partnership working to promote and deliver choice, training and support for 
workforce to deliver personalised care, using Personal Budgets and self directed support, 
enabling individuals to assess and manage their self care needs.  The model for ‘Putting 
People First’ is clearly focussed around individuals and has four key themes as detailed 
below: 
 

 Page 16



 
5 

4 Background 
 
4.1 Wirral Council has clearly articulated the concept and benefits of Personal Budgets 

and aims to ensure the individuals are offered choice, control and improved 
outcomes to live their lives in the way and place of their own choice. 

 
4.2 The outputs from the project are in line with putting people first milestones: 

§ Ensuring effective partnerships with people using services, carers and other 
local citizens 

§ Providing self-directed support and Personal Budgets 
§ Taking a whole system approach to prevention, intervention and cost effective 

services 
§ Providing information that all citizens should be able to easily find, locally 

relevant quality information and advice about their care and support needs in 
order to enable control and inform choice 

§ Local commissioning is developed ensuring a diverse and high quality market in 
care and support services to offer real choice and control to individuals and their 
carers. 

 
4.3 The roll out of Personal Budgets in Wirral has been agreed in 3 Phases.  Phase 1 

commenced in January 2009, with a small cohort of people who use services of 
various ages having varying needs, located in all wards of Wirral Council.  The aim 
of Phase 2 was to test a minimum of 10% of people receiving community based 
services which equated to approximately 200 cases.  This was intended to give a 
more realistic and statistically valid assessment of the impact of the resource 
allocation system on the budget and test if processes and systems were workable 
on a wider cohort of individuals.  Phase 2 commenced in December 2009 and ran 
for 9 months.  Phase 2 was undertaken within the Birkenhead locality, Wirral people 
who have a learning disability and survivors of stroke leaving hospital. 

 
4.4 Learning from Phase 1 and Phase 2 will be taken forward into Phase 3 of the 

Personal Budgets project.  Phase 3 will see the offer of Personal Budgets made to 
all eligible residents in Wirral.  The aim of Phase 3 Personal Budgets project is to 
ensure that at least 30% of eligible people in Wirral receive a Personal Budget by 
the end of March 2011 which is an indication that people are receiving personalised 
support to enable them to have more choice and control over their lives. 

 
4.5 This evaluation report reflects on the learning to date from Phase 2 and from 

customer feedback from Phase 1 six months after they had received their Personal 
Budget.  The evaluation draws together a range of information which gives a fuller 
picture of the impact of Personal Budgets in a range of areas.  The evaluation 
covers the following areas: 
• customer feedback; chapter 4 

• financial impact; chapter 5 

• performance information; chapter 6 

• training and support; chapter 7 

• involvement of relevant stakeholders; chapter 8 

• Regional and National learning; chapter 9. 

Page 17



 
6 

5 Phase 1: Evaluation 
 
5.1 Wirral’s first Personal Budget evaluation report, gave positive feedback from those 

individuals who took part in Phase 1.  Eight people who use services and six carers 
returned completed questionnaires.  25% of people who use services taking part in 
the Phase 1 said their Personal Budget had made a positive difference to their 
health and wellbeing.  37.5% of people felt safer in their home as a result of their 
Personal Budget and 25% felt safer whilst outside.  75% felt that their Personal 
Budget had given them more control and increased their social life. 

 
5.2 83.3% of carers said that the Personal Budget had increased their ability to continue 

caring and 66.7% said that it had a positive affect on their physical and mental 
wellbeing along with a positive affect on their quality of life. 

 
5.3 To further assess experiences from people who had been in receipt of a Personal 

Budget for more than six months the original questionnaire was sent again to 
participants of Phase 1. 

 
 People in receipt of a Personal Budget for more than 6 months from Phase 1 
 
5.4 To further assess experiences from people who had been receipt of a Personal 

Budget for more than six months the original questionnaire was sent again to 
participants of Phase 1.  Eight people who use services and six carers returned 
completed questionnaires.  Findings from the questionnaires were that satisfaction 
for people in receipt of a Personal Budget had improved in all but one area from 
when the questionnaire was first sent out compared to six months later. 
 
 Phase 1 

original 
questionnaire 

Phase 1 
After 6 
months 

Has the Personal Budget made a difference to your 
health? 

25% 75% 

Has your Personal Budget made a difference to how 
safe you feel at home? 

37.5% 87.5% 

Has the Personal Budget made a difference to how 
safe you feel when you go out? 

25% 75% 

Has your Personal Budget made a difference to the 
control you have over your support? 

75% 100% 

Has you Personal Budget made a difference to your 
social life? 

75% 62.5% 

Has your Personal Budget made a difference to 
whether you are supported with dignity? 

12.5% 75% 

 
 

Page 18



 
7 

5.5 Carer’s satisfaction also improved reporting increases in improved quality of life, 
improved mental health and wellbeing and improved opportunities to undertake paid 
work. 
 
 Phase 1 

original 
questionnaire  

Phase 1 
After 6 
months 

What effect has your Personal Budget had on your 
quality of life? 

66.67% 100% 

What effect has your Personal Budget had on your 
capacity to have social life or follow leisure activities? 

50% 100% 

What effect has your Personal Budget had on your 
ability to continue or undertake paid work? 

0 50% 

What effect has your Personal Budget had on the 
relationship you have with the person you care for? 

50% 100% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had on other 
significant relationships (family and friends) in your 
life? 

50% 83.3% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had on the level 
of choice and control you have over the important 
things in your life? 

16.67% 100% 

During the Personal Budgets process how far would 
you say you felt you were an equal party with 
expertise to contribute? 

83.33% 100% 

 
 

6 Phase 2: Research Methods 
 
6.1  The focus of the evaluation was to collect people’s thoughts and experiences during 

the project period.  Linked to this was a fundamental wish to empower people who 
use services and carers to tell their own stories of how Personal Budgets had 
changed their lives. 

 
6.2  Feedback was gathered using simplified versions of the same tools (questionnaires) 

used to evaluate Phase 1.  This was so that results could be directly compared 
during the analysis.  The questionnaires for people who have a Personal Budget 
and Carers measured key social care outcomes from the person’s perspective.  
Both qualitative (experiences) and quantitative (performance) data was collected 
and analysed. 

 
6.3 Staff conducted telephone and face-to-face interviews with people in receipt of a 

Personal Budget (for six weeks or more) and carers.  Questionnaires were 
distributed to staff involved in Phase 2 off the project.  The research method is 
summarised as follows: 

 
Stakeholders Method 
Staff involved in the project Questionnaire + face-to-face interaction 
People who have had a Personal 
Budget for six weeks or more 

Telephone and face-to-face interviews using 
simplified version of Phase 1 questionnaire 

Carers Telephone and face-to-face interviews using 
simplified version of Phase 1 questionnaire 

 
 

Page 19



 
8 

7 Findings: Customer Feedback 
 
7.1 55 individuals and 19 carers were identified as having a Personal Budget for more 

than six weeks.  All individuals and carers were contacted however 26 individuals 
and 19 carers responded and took part in completing evaluation questionnaires. 

 
7.2  People who use services feedback 

Male 7 Gender 
Female 19 

Ethnic origin White British 26 
 
7.3 We asked individuals if their Personal Budgets had made a difference 
 

Question asked % improvement 
Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to your health? 

69% 

Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to how safe you feel at 
home? 

73% 

Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to how safe you feel when 
you go out? 

46% 

Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to the control you have over 
your support? 

62% 

Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to your social life? 

42% 

Has your Personal Budget made a 
difference to whether you are 
supported with dignity? 

81% 

 
7.4 Comments made by individuals during the questionnaire 

 
“Don’t think it could have been done better.  Social Worker very good, not like the 
old days”. 
 
“I am very pleased with the service as it stands now not sure how things could be 
improved”. 
 
“I don't think they can do anything else really.  It's working for me, they're very good, 
if there is a problem, my assessment officer sorts it, she has been absolutely 
brilliant”.  
 
“Before I had assessment support officer I felt like I was being told what I need 
rather than asked, which made me feel patronised.” 
 
“My Personal Budget has improved my confidence and communication.  Laughing 
with the carer is so important and being able to speak and relate to others”. 
 
“I have excellent support around Personal Budgets from social services staff they 
were very helpful, kind and reliable.  However the assessment document was very 
long and tiring” 
 
“Paperwork took too long.  Found it hard to remember what had been said”. 
 
“Filling in the SDA without support was difficult and upsetting”. Page 20



 
9 

 
7.5 Carers feedback 
 

Male 4 Gender 
Female 15 

Ethnic origin White British 19 
 
7.6 We asked carers if their Personal Budgets had made a difference 
 

Question asked 
 

% improvement 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on your quality of life? 

74% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on your capacity to have a social life or 
follow leisure activity? 

68% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on your ability to continue or undertake 
paid work? 

11% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on the relationship you have with the 
person you care for? 

42% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on other significant relationships (family 
and friends) in your life? 

42% 

What effect has the Personal Budget had 
on the level of choice and control you 
have over the important things in your 
life? 

47% 

During the Personal Budget process, how 
far would you say you felt you were an 
equal part with expertise to contribute? 

58% 

 
7.7 Comments made by Carers during the questionnaire 
 

“Yes it helped me get help I now have piece of mind, in case of emergencies.  It has 
made ours lives easier.” 
 
“Well I think I may be able to go away on holiday in the future because I know he 
will still get what he needs”. 
 
“Makes it easier for me to go to work and makes it possible”. 
 
“I value the help that I have received and couldn’t do without the help.  Not many 
people understand and neighbours don’t pop in to ask for a message like in the old 
days”. 
 
“I was having real difficulties with the care agency before the Personal Budget; it’s 
made my life a lot better”. 
 
“Social Worker has been brilliant and helped a lot”. 
 
“A positive experience and I feel like they have listened”. 
 

Page 21



 
10

“I don't want Direct Payments, or to be responsible for paying wages and tax it is 
more work and extra pressure for me with these 'separate' bank accounts, it is 
difficult enough managing my account and my Mums finances without a Personal 
Budget account for carers.  On the plus side it did enable a care package to be put 
into place really quickly and the staff helping to sort it out and set it up have been 
brilliant”. 
 
“Overwhelming, didn’t know were to go for what”. 
 
“The paper work was daunting to say the least, but my social care worker was great, 
he filled everything in with us and in the end it was worthwhile”. 
 
“Knowing what to spend the money on is difficult to understand but working my way 
through it”. 

 
7.8 Staff feedback 
 
7.9 36 staff completed an evaluation questionnaire which asked staff to look at areas of 

work and for each area say whether having a Personal Budget had (a) helped, (b) 
made things worse, (c) made no difference.  The results were as follows: 

 
Area of work (a) Helped (b) Worse (c) No 

Difference 
Making a positive difference to 
peoples lives 

50% 8% 31% 

Helping people plan creatively 67% 6% 17% 
Getting the right amount of help to 
people 

33% 19% 31% 

Getting help to people in a timely 
way (when they want it) 

8% 64% 11% 

Using your own skills and 
knowledge 

39% 22% 33% 

Allocating resources fairly 31% 28% 22% 
Helping people to maintain existing 
support networks 

44% 3% 31% 

Supporting people to take an 
active part in their community 

44% 3% 44% 

Managing risks 19% 11% 61% 
Supporting people to take control 
and make choice about their lives 

56% 6% 22% 

Developing support that is tailored 
to the needs of an individual 

44% 11% 28% 

Staying motivated in your own 
work 

8% 56% 19% 

 
7.10 Comments made by staff during the questionnaire 
 

“Personal Budgets empower people”. 
 
“The concept is rewarding”. 
 
“The concept of Personal Budgets is positive; systems and lack of resources are 
slowing it up”. 
 
“I feel if we moved at a slower pace I feel us the front line workers would feel more 
in control”. 
 Page 22



 
11

“Service users unable to help themselves, with the present system, the worker does 
it all for them”. 
 
“Could do with more info on what we can access or brokerage”. 
 
“It would be useful to have a resource directory, covering providers, community 
services, criteria, costs”. 
 
“My experience shows that 100% of the people contacting DASS want face to face 
contact”. 
 
“New systems sometimes confusing and time consuming, complex cases take a lot 
longer and a lot more planning with clients and families”. 
 
“Greater participation with local communities needs to be facilitated in order to effect 
stronger stakeholder involvement in the development /shaping of services which 
customers require”. 
 
“Whilst you’re still carrying on with the double running of the systems, it’s very easy 
to lose people from – in terms of their buy-in, from staff feeling its more work and 
they’re not quite sure where it’s going”. 
 

7.11 Conclusion 
 
Evidence suggests that Personal Budgets are meeting people’s aspirations for 
independence and are giving people greater control over their lives.  Two example 
case studies are attached at the appendix, which further demonstrates, a shift 
towards focussing on individuals and fitting services around people not people 
around services.  Feedback confirms that customers have a stronger voice and 
have been major drivers in developing the systems, processes and improving 
approaches. 
 
The process of delivering a Personal Budget involves spending more time with 
customers at the assessment stage, which has proven to be a very positive 
experience for those people.  However, the testing and re-testing of business 
processes has been time consuming.  However, this has results in a set of 
processes which are significantly streamlined and easy to use focussing on the 
customer at all times and which meet the Council’s statutory duties. 

 
There is an impact on the role and function for the social care workforce where the 
customer is in control of the support planning stage and the investment in training 
and support has been significant to enable staff to the new approaches and re-
skilling where required. 

 
 

8 Findings: Financial Impact 
 
8.1 When the evaluation was completed there were 1,782 individuals with a completed 

self-directed assessment.  477 of these individuals had completed the Resource 
Allocation System and been given an Indicative Budget. 
 

Page 23



 
12

8.2 Of the 477 individuals with an Indicative Budget, 14 had chosen to go into 
residential care and 50 had chosen to go into nursing home care.  These people 
were excluded from the financial evaluation because a Personal Budget cannot be 
used to pay for residential or nursing home care.  Therefore the financial evaluation 
was based on 413 individuals.  The cost of the Indicative Budgets allocated for 
these individuals is £5,451,784 (an average of £253.85 per person per week).  This 
was not individual’s final budget following support planning. 

 

8.3 In order for a comparison to be made it was important to know how much support 
costs would have been under the previous assessment and care management 
model, for these individuals. 

 

8.4 224 of the 413 individuals had an existing support package in place.  This gave a 
high level of confidence that an average cost for these existing packages could be 
used to estimate the cost for those individuals who did not have a package of 
support already in place.  This gave a total annual cost of support of £5,021,432. 

 

8.5 The evaluation shows that for the majority of cases the actual cost of support that is 
put in place is less than the Indicative Budget.  This may be because the support 
being provided was not at the right level to meet needs currently and therefore 
support needs may have increased since the last assessment.  However for some 
people the cost of support put in place can be more due to very complex needs.  In 
these cases all monies agreed for these individuals would have been approved by 
the risk and support group.  113 individuals have completed the whole process and 
have a fully costed support package and are receiving services.  The average cost 
of their support is 28% less than their Indicative Budget. 

 

8.6 The new system has also identified the additional needs of carers that were not 
previously met.  53 carers were identified who qualify for a carers Personal Budget 
at an average of £40.64 per week, £112,000 per year.   

8.7 A summary of the findings is provided below. 

 

Previous cost of support for the sample 413 people 5,021,432 

Indicative Budget at £1.88 per point 5,451,784 

Actual cost of final budget after support planning (known as a 
Personal Budgets) 

3,925,284 

Spend on new carers identified (assuming no further increase) 112,000 

Positive variance 984,147 

 

8.8 A ‘positive variance’ is the amount that is not spent on people but was spent 
previously on their commissioned support.  If everyone elected to take a Personal 
Budget this would mean a reduction in the Department’s spending.  However, the 
project confirms the expectation that not everyone will elect to have a Personal 
Budget. 

 

Page 24



 
13

8.9 This will particularly be the case for people with complex needs or whose 
commissioned support is currently much greater than would be offered by a 
Personal Budget.  In these cases transitional arrangements will need to be put in 
place for an agreed period of time in order to keep the individual safe.  32 people fall 
into this category and the difference in cost of continuing their existing support 
arrangements is £890,196 per year.  Over time this group of individuals will be 
replaced or will be motivated to elect for a Personal Budget which would give them 
better outcomes with increased choice and control. 

 
8.10 Further learning from the initial phases shows that the needs of carers are being 

more clearly identified and eligible needs are being met. Supporting carers is a 
priority within Wirral Council’s Corporate Plan.  As with all Personal Budgets 
affordability is based on effective assessment and support planning, identifying the 
carer’s relationship with the person they are supporting.  The cost of support to 
carers has therefore been included in this initial evaluation. 

 
 
8.11 Conclusion 
 

 The conclusion for this part of the evaluation is that there is enough evidence to 
show that the Resource Allocation System gives, as an Indicative Budget, 8.57% 
more than the existing cost of commissioned support from the assessment and care 
management model, assuming that these current services are meeting all of the 
individuals’ current needs.  However this is not the actual cost incurred by the 
Council.  The Indicative Budget gives no guarantee of the amount the Council will 
spend on meeting an individual’s needs, this is determined at the support planning 
stage.  The evaluation demonstrates that the average cost of support for the group 
of people identified is 78.2% of the previous cost of support and 72% of the 
Indicative Budget. 

 

9 Findings: Performance Information 
 
9.1 There are two key performance indicators which have been used as a measure of 

success for implementing Personal Budgets and have been monitored during Phase 
1 and 2 of the Personal Budget project.  Performance targets have been set and 
progress has reported weekly in team meetings and monthly by the Personal 
Budgets project board.  The performance indicators are as follows: 

 
• The percentage of completed assessments that are recorded as self directed 

assessments (a local indicator called 8858) 
 
• Percentage of social care clients receiving self directed support (a national 

indicator called NI130) 
 

Page 25



 
14

9.2 Self directed assessments (8858) 
 

Number Target 
09/10 

Actual 
09/10 

Target 
Q1 
10/11 

Actual 
Q1 
10/11 

Target 
Q2 
10/11 

Actual 
Q2 
10/11 

Target 
Q3 
10/11 

Target 
Q4 
10/11 

 
Percentage 
 

25% 
1.93% 12.50% 14.58% 18% 

 
20.90% 

 
32% 50.00% 

Number of 
self directed 
assessments 

4615 413 577 662 1661 
 
2159 

 
4430 9230 

 
9.3 Self directed support (NI130) 

 
Number Target 

09/10 
Actual 
09/10 

Target 
Q1 
10/11 

Actual 
Q1 
10/11 

Targe
t 
Q2 
10/11 

Actua
l Q2 
10/11 

Target 
Q3 
10/11 

Target 
Q4 
10/11 

Percentage 15.00% 5.55% 7.00% 6.76% 10% 9.36% 20% 30% 
Number of 
people with 
self directed 
support 

1300 504 483 428 

 
 
725 704 

 
 
1626 2751 

 
9.4 The Personal Budgets project (Phase 1, 2 and 3) is ensuring that the Putting People 

First Milestone 2 (self directed support and Personal Budgets) will be delivered on 
time.  The key dates and deliverables are as follows: 

 
Key Date Key Deliverable Status 
April 2010 That every council has introduced 

Personal Budgets, which are being used 
by existing or new service users/ carers 

Achieved via Phase 1 

October 2010 That all new service users / carers (with 
assessed need for ongoing support) are 
offered a Personal Budget.  
 
That all service users whose care plans 
are subject to review are offered a 
Personal Budget.  
 

Full roll out begins on 
19.11.10.  Training on 
process undertaken in 
October 2010 

April 2011 That at least 30% of eligible service 
users/carers have a Personal Budget. 

On target 

 
9.5 Conclusion 
 

Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets project has positively impacted on the number of 
people receiving a self directed assessment (8858).  Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 
targets have been exceeded.  This performance indicator consistently under 
performed in 09/10 prior to the start of Personal Budgets Phase 2 project. 

 
Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets project has positively impacted on the number of 
people receiving self directed support (NI130).  Quarter 1 target was narrowly 
missed by 55 people and Quarter 2 target was narrowly missed by 21 people.  This 
performance indicator consistently under performed in 09/10 prior to the start of 
Personal Budget Phase 2 project. 

 Page 26



 
15

The Personal Budgets project (Phase 1, 2 and 3) is ensuring that the Putting People 
First Milestone 2 (self directed support and Personal Budgets) will be delivered on 
time.  The October 2010 key date was narrowly missed due to a delay on the 
Council’s decision to roll out the resource allocation system. 

10 Findings: Training and Support 
 
10.1 Training and support has been designed and delivered alongside the Personal 

Budgets project.  The involvement of relevant stakeholders in the design and delivery 
of this training and support has been critical.  The following is the training and support 
that has been provided: 

 
• Personalisation Process Training: Ten sessions have taken place.  A total of 

188 staff have received full training on the revised business processes taking into 
account lessons learned during Phase 2.  This is core training for all access and 
assessment branch staff and includes other staff in the Department and equips 
staff for delivering the new agenda.  This training was designed in response to 
feedback received from staff as part of Phase 2. 

• Personalisation Awareness: Eight Personalisation Awareness sessions have 
taken place between January and August 2010 with 116 people attending from 
Adult Social Services, independent provider services, carers and the voluntary 
sector.  All sessions were well attended with an 80% attendance rate.  An 
additional four sessions have been advertised and places booked offering 68 
places. 

• Support Planning: Nine Support Planning training programmes have been 
delivered to priority groups between January and August 2010 with a further 
seven planned to take place between September 2010 and January 2011 
ensuring that all priority staff attend across localities and organisations. 

• Self Directed Assessment and Resource Allocation System: Support on the 
self directed assessment and resource allocation system has been delivered as 
part of the support planning training facilitated by staff development and Reform 
Unit and through mentoring provided by the Reform Unit and Finance staff. 

• Outcomes: Training on Outcomes has taken place for 25 staff.  A further three 
dates have been identified to take place in October and November 2010. 

• Co-production: An AFTA Thought event on 16th July 2010 took place for 100 
people including staff from DASS, NHS Wirral and individuals who use services. 

• North West Personalisation Project: is a partnership between the Open 
University, Department of Adult Social Services and NHS Wirral to develop a 
distance learning course on personalisation. 

 
10.2 Feedback from the training events has been reflected upon and, where relevant, 

adjustments made to the training programmes.  Some feedback received from the 
personalisation process training is as follows: 

 
 “I enjoyed the training and love the fact that customers are having a say in their future 

support needs.  I would consider perhaps a future change in career for myself in 
creating support plans” 
 
“Excellent involvement of individuals to provide input/reflection on the customer 
perspective. Sufficient time allowance to cover all elements/questions” 
 
“Clearer sense of the journey through process documents involved and emphasis on 
the focus being person using services” 
 
“I feel today’s workshop has helped reduce the 'process from overwhelming 
challenging to challenging which is a positive outcome for me” 
 Page 27



 
16

“The training was excellent, it will enable me to effectively manage my area under the 
new process and advise my staff.  The new process should really improve income 
collection if it is carried out effectively” 

 
 
10.3 Conclusion 
 
 The training and support provided has been well received.  The involvement of 

relevant stakeholders in the design and delivery of this training and support has been 
critical.  Feedback from all events has been reflected upon and, where relevant, 
training programmes have been adjusted.  Learning and resources available from the 
‘Skills for Care’, North West Joint Improvement Partnership and other relevant 
organisations has been. 

 
 

11 Findings: Involvement of Relevant Stakeholders 
 
11.1 A central feature to the introduction of self directed support and Personal Budgets 

project has been the involvement of all relevant stakeholders.  The guiding principal 
has been to involve relevant stakeholders at every step in the project, not just through 
consultation, but through co-designing processes, systems and documentation 
together.  This has been achieved in the following ways: 

 
• The Personal Budget Project Board was reviewed and restructured to initiate 

Phase 2 of the project working within the ethos of co-design and based on the 
PRINCE 2 model of project management/planning.  Project board meetings took 
place on a monthly basis and a person who uses services was a member of the 
board.  A protocol for the involvement of people who use services and carers 
was designed and used setting down role, purpose and data protection issues 

• The project was managed through five work streams focussing on Awareness, 
Assessment & Validation, Support Planning, Monitoring & Review and Training & 
Development.  Testing has been undertaken through co-design, with both staff 
and customers, to ensure full engagement is secured in reaching a position 
where new processes are created together, worked through together and agreed 
together.  This has created a sense of ownership and will ensure a consistent 
approach is taken by staff in applying processes and procedures when 
undertaking their roles 

• A process and practice handbook has been developed with staff and customers.  
Consultation took place with stakeholders within all Department of Adult Social 
Services Branches, the Council Legal Services and Audit Departments and 
Unions 

• Wirral’s joint health and social care self directed assessment has been 
extensively tested by customers and staff and refined during Phase 2 of the 
project work.  This Joint Assessment documentation has also been designed and 
agreed with health colleagues will be rolled out across the health economy as 
part of Phase 3 Personal Budgets project 

• Work has started with the voluntary and community sector to develop brokerage 
support within existing contract arrangements.  This work will continue with the 
new contracts from April 2011 and work is currently taking place to develop an 
approved provider list for those agencies wishing to provide brokerage support 

• Extensive work has been undertaken on the resource allocation system with 
input from the Department’s Finance Team, Corporate Finance and an external 
consultant paid for from the Department of Health.  The resource allocation 
system has been subject to scrutiny from as part of the work of the Taskforce 
looking at options for Adult Social Care and locally elected members Page 28



 
17

• The reform unit staff, staff within finance and performance branch and access 
and assessment managers have provided an intensive mentoring and support 
service to staff working as part of Phase 2 and have been on-site in the teams 
providing advice and guidance and attending assessment visits with staff 

• Weekly team meetings within Phase 2 teams have taken place reporting on 
progress of performance indicators and time for a question and answer session 
which has been facilitated through ‘learning boards’ for locality / team staff to 
place questions and suggestions of ‘post it’ notes as and when they occurred.  
All question and answers have been recorded however some common themes 
emerging throughout the project included: 

 
Q1. After the Personal Budgets project is complete will Personal Budgets 

be compulsory or will it be optional? 
A1. The departmental and national vision is to make Personal Budgets 

compulsory remembering that Personal Budgets are a way of giving 
individual’s greater control and flexibility over the way their assessed 
needs are met.  The Personal Budget is an amount of money that is 
available to the individual from Wirral Council to help meet social care 
needs.  The definition of a Personal Budget as measure through a 
national performance indicator (NI130) is that with a Personal Budget 
an individual can: 
• know up-front how much money is available from the council to 

meet individual needs (called an Indicative Budget) 
• decide how they want that money to be used (called support 

planning) 
• get the support and advice to make the choices that best meet 

their needs 
• know how much contribute financially and the final budget. 

 
Q2. If the individual in receipt of a Personal Budget is also acting as an 

employer, how does this affect and protect the rights of the employer 
and those they employ e.g. employment law, Criminal Records Bureau 
check (CRB)? 

A2. If the individual wants the Personal Budget delivered via a Direct 
Payment, where they then choose to act as an employer, then the 
Direct Payment team in the Department of Adult Social Services give 
free advice and guidance on becoming an employer.  There are a 
number of organisations that people are advised to contact for advice 
and support. 

 
Q3. Is there any interim brokerage services available seeing as no 

organisations are coming forward? 
 
A3. The Department of Adult Social Services currently provide some in 

house support around brokerage through the brokerage and Direct 
Payments team however we also have a list available of the current 
brokers we know in Wirral and are developing an approved provider 
list that can be distributed to individuals.  However, individuals do not 
need to use those on our approved provider list.  It is there choice who 
they use. 

 

Page 29



 
18

Q4. Is the self directed assessment sensitive to the fact that other streams 
of funding such as Independent Living Fund are changing their 
criteria? 

 
A4. The Self Directed Assessment embeds Fair Access to Care criteria 

which has been set by Local Authority ensuring that eligible needs will 
be met.  Triggers have been set within the Self Directed Assessment 
that indicate the possibility that other funding streams may need to be 
considered.  If those funding streams are denied and the support plan 
exceeds the Indicative Budget, it will be presented at the risk and 
safety group. 

 
11.2 Conclusion 
 

Involving people who use services at an early stage within Phase 2 of the Personal 
Budget project has improved the development of processes ensuring that the 
approach taken has a ‘buy-in’ from those affected.  It has helped policy makers to 
engage with the involvement process personally.  People who use services and 
carers are members of the project board, various work streams, risk and safety 
meetings and have enabled a balanced decision making process.  The Independent 
Disabled People’s Forum has provided support and guidance with support planning.  
The development of brokerage support in the community is critical to ensuring 
customers have choice and control over their lives. 

 
 

12 Findings: Local, Regional and National Learning 
 

12.1 Wirral Council undertook an internal audit on the personal budgets business 
process in November 2009 to ensure that the identified controls within the phase 1 
project were working effectively and were adequate to mitigate the risks identified.  
The audit identified a number of areas of good practice and recommendations.  In 
March 2010 the internal audit follow up report confirmed that all the 
recommendations had been fully implemented. 

 
12.2 Wirral continues to be members of the North West Joint Improvement Partnership 

(NWJIP) and Merseyside Meetings.  A raft of information has been exchanged and 
joint working continues with North West Councils.  The learning resources available 
through this network have been used in the design of the business process for 
personalisation and in the training and support programme which have been 
designed.   

 
12.3 As a high priority the development of the resource allocation system was regarded 

as the most challenging task throughout Phase 1 and Phase 2.  Wirral has benefited 
from working with an external consultant commissioned by the National Programme 
Director for Personalisation via the North West Joint Improvement Programme, who 
has assisted in the further development of Wirral’s resource allocation system. 

 
12.4 Conclusion 
 

The input from regional and national learning has been invaluable in the design, 
delivery and approach to Wirral’s Personal Budget project Phase 1, 2 and 3.  
Learning from the 13 national pilot sites has been used, alongside other available 
resources and best practice has been utilised at every opportunity to ensure Wirral’s 
approach to Personal Budgets is grounded in the important principals of 
personalisation. 

 Page 30



 
19

 

13 Conclusions 
 
13.1 Personal Budgets are meeting people’s aspirations for independence and are giving 

people greater control over their lives.  Evidence from customers suggests a shift 
towards focussing on individuals and fitting services around people not people 
around services.  Feedback confirms that customers have a stronger voice and 
have been major drivers in developing the systems, processes and improving 
approaches. 
 

13.2 The Phase 2 evaluation can confirm the concept of Personal Budgets is welcomed 
by customers and social care professionals.  Feedback and case studies suggest 
Personal Budgets are improving outcomes for individuals.  Similar outcomes can be 
identified between the results of the Personal Budget project Phase I and Phase 2 
with significant improvement being reported once an individual has received a 
Personal Budgets for six months.   

 
13.3 During Phase 2 testing new business processes was time consuming.  This was as 

a consequence of running two systems and testing new processes.  The new 
business process has now been streamlined and positive feedback has been 
received through the personalisation process training on the new business process.  
A new set of processes are now in place which are significantly streamlined and 
easy to use focussing on the customer at all times and which meet the Council’s 
statutory duties. 

 
13.4 The process of delivering a Personal Budget involves spending more time with 

people who use services, which has proven to be a very positive experience for 
those people.  There is an impact on the role and function for the social care 
workforce where the customer is in control of the support planning stage and the 
investment in training and support has been significant to enable staff to the new 
approaches and re-skilling where required. 

 

13.5 The conclusion for this financial evaluation is that there is enough evidence to show 
that the Resource Allocation System gives, as an Indicative Budget, 8.57% more 
than the existing cost of commissioned support from the assessment and care 
management model, assuming that these current services are meeting all of the 
individuals’ current needs.  However this is not the actual cost incurred by the 
Council.  The Indicative Budget gives no guarantee of the amount the Council will 
spend on meeting an individual’s needs, this is determined at the support planning 
stage.  The evaluation demonstrates that the average cost of support for the group 
of people identified is 78.2% of the previous cost of support and 72% of the 
Indicative Budget. 

 
13.6 Phase 2 of the Personal Budgets project has positively impacted on the number of 

people receiving a self directed assessment (8858) and positively impacted on the 
number of people receiving self directed support (NI130).  In addition the Personal 
Budgets project (Phase 1, 2 and 3) is ensuring that the Putting People First 
Milestone 2 (self directed support and Personal Budgets) will be delivered on time. 

 

13.7 Training and support has been well received and the involvement of relevant 
stakeholders in the design and delivery of this training and support has been critical.  
Feedback from all events has been reflected upon and, where relevant, training 
programmes have been adjusted.  Learning and resources available from the ‘Skills 
for Care’, North West Joint Improvement Partnership and other relevant 
organisations has been. Page 31



 
20

 
13.8 Involving people who use services at an early stage within Phase 2 of the Personal 

Budget project has improved the development of processes ensuring that the 
approach taken has a ‘buy-in’ from those affected.  It has helped policy makers to 
engage with the involvement process personally.  People who use services and 
carers are members of the project board, various work streams, risk and safety 
meetings and have enabled a balanced decision making process.  The Independent 
Disabled People’s Forum has provided support and guidance with support planning. 
Although work has started with the voluntary and community sector to develop 
brokerage support this needs to be accelerated as it is critical to ensuring customers 
have choice and control over their lives. 

 
13.9 The input from regional and national learning has been invaluable in the design, 

delivery and approach to Wirral’s Personal Budget project Phase 1, 2 and 3.  
Learning from the 13 national pilot sites has been used, alongside other available 
resources and best practice has been utilised at every opportunity to ensure Wirral’s 
approach to Personal Budgets is grounded in the important principals of 
personalisation. 

 
 

Page 32



 
21

14 Recommendations for Phase 3 
 
14.1 Phase 3 of the project began in September 2010 with recommendations made on a 

suitable resource allocation system and the launch of a new business process 
through training to 188 staff.  The majority of the work has been done as part of 
Phase 2 which has assisted with the preparatory work needed for fuller roll out.  It is 
therefore considered that it is appropriate to roll out Personal Budgets as part of 
Phase 3 of the Personal Budgets project. 

 
However, there are some further areas which will need to be implemented, 
evaluated and overseen as part of Phase 3 to ensure further learning takes place on 
this new way of working.  The recommendations for Phase 3 are detailed below: 

 
Area of focus Recommendations 
Customer feedback • Monitor and evaluate the use of the new business processes 

to ensure staff are adhering to processes 
• Adjust, where relevant, business processes focussing on 

customers and the council’s legal duties 
• Analyse feedback from customer feedback surveys, 

compliments and complaints and feed learning into 
processes and approaches 

• Provide appropriate, timely advice and information to 
customers on Personal Budgets 

 
Financial impact • Monitor and evaluate impact of resource allocation system 

• Make recommendations to Council for any relevant 
adjustments to be made to resource allocation system 
alongside Fair Access to Care criteria 

 
Performance 
information 

• Monitor key performance indicators (NI130 and 8858) to 
ensure targets are met and report to relevant stakeholders 

• Ensure Putting People First Milestones are met 
 

Training and support • Continue to deliver training to relevant staff 
• Schedule additional sessions on personalisation process 

training during December 2010 
• Support and mentoring programme in place to support staff 

with applying the new processes delivered by Reform Unit 
and Finance and Performance staff 

 
Involvement of 
relevant stakeholders 

• Communication with all key stakeholders to ensure any 
changes are communicated effectively and understood 

• Continue to develop brokerage support in the voluntary and 
community sector 

• Continue to develop an approved provider list for brokerage 
support 

• Implement plan for involvement of customers in Phase 3 
 

Page 33



 
22

Local, Regional and 
national learning 

• Continue to use regional and national available resources 
• Plan focus of external consultant’s work – 2 days remaining 
• Implement the recommendations from the Audit 

Commissions report (October 2010) ‘Financial management 
of personal budgets; challenges and opportunities for 
councils’ 

• Implement the guidance accompanying the Vision for Adult 
Social Care related to personal budgets 

Page 34



 
23

Appendix 
 

Personal Budget Case Studies 
 
The following case examples provide an insight into the impact Personal Budgets is having 
on the lives on people in Wirral.  Consent has been given to publish the photograph and 
stories of the individuals for the purpose of this evaluation report. 
 
An interview took place, this is what was said: 
 
I am 87 years of age and in very poor health.  I am housebound and cannot look after 
myself.  I am becoming forgetful and confused and when this happens I get very anxious. 
I spend most of my time alone staring at the four walls, and this makes me feel very sad 
and lonely.  I often miss meals either because I forget to eat or I can’t be bothered.  I forget 
to take my medication, I have not taken it on a number of occasions, and there is so much 
of it!  I find every aspect of looking after myself exhausting, sometimes I just feel like giving 
up. 
 
Carer - I am her daughter and I am tired!  I live in Maghull with my husband and have a full 
time job in Bootle working for the Inland Revenue.  I have been the main carer for my mum 
for some time, over the past few months, I have been really worried about her, she has lost 
a lot of weight and I think she is depressed.  I am travelling to the Wirral on a daily basis 
and sometimes twice a day, to look after her.  I do feel guilty when I have to leave her, she 
often wants to just chat, but after I have sorted all the things I need to do for her I haven’t 
got time to chat.  There were times when all that I could see for mum was a residential 
care home, mum wouldn’t want that, but I can’t go on the way things are. 
 
How was your first interview with your assessment support officer? 
 
Carer - explained Personal Budgets to us, and I was very apprehensive, so was mum, he 
reassured us and we decided to go with it.  The assessment document was lengthy and 
daunting, but I deal with paper work in my job, I can imagine it would be difficult for others. 
 
How did you find the process from the assessment to receiving your Personal 
Budget? 
 
The assessment support officer was lovely. 
 
Carer - The length of the process was fine, our assessment support officer kept us 
informed along the way, when you know what is going on and help is on its way, every 
thing feels much brighter. 
 
How did you choose your support? 
 
Carer - We choose an agency, to support mum, our assessment support officer provided a 
list of Wirral agencies, I was concerned they would not be responsive to mums needs and 
wishes; however I contacted a provider who came to help us with mums support plan.  The 
agency worker listen to everything mum wanted, she also took on board the flexibility that 
maybe needed if I wanted to go away at short notice. 
 
Do you use all your Personal Budget on agency? 
 
Most of it, mum employs a cleaner who now helps mum get a shower when she requires 
one. 
 
 Page 35



 
24

Have you had any problems with your support? 
 
Only once the care worker didn’t turn up until 6.15 to give me my tea, it was too late for 
me, I did explain that to the worker, it hasn’t happened since then. 
 
Carer – It is going great, I recently went away for a break at short notice, the agency 
provided the care at the weekend mum needed she was fine, I doubt she even missed me. 
I had no idea an agency could work in such a personalised way. 
 
I see you have assistive technology what do you think about it? 
 
I have bits of technology in my flat, it helps me with my medication and security, my piper 
life line is great, everyone should have one.  I did leave my piper life line in the living room 
one evening, I fell out of bed and ended up on the floor all night, I was so scared and in 
pain, my hair dresser found me the next morning.  I had a long stay in hospital which was 
awful.  I always wear my life line now, it has kept me out of hospital and I feel so much 
safer. 
 
You have had your Personal Budget for over 3 months now what difference has it 
made to you? 
 
Although my health is not great, it’s a lot better than it was, I do have osteoporosis you 
know!  I love my food again and have recently put weight on and I have been discharged 
from the dietician.  I am no longer housebound I go out with my support worker twice a 
week and still go to my daughters house in Maghull on Sundays.  I can still be forgetful at 
times but don’t we all? 
 
I have support from an agency every day, which is on a chart for me to help me remember. 
I was concerned of having different people assisting me with my personal care at first, but 
the agency has arranged regular girls to support me and they are lovely.  I love chatting 
with them and I know they listen to me, one of them remembered me telling her I use to 
play in the Arno in Birkenhead as a youngster, she arranged a surprise visit one afternoon, 
it was wonderful.  I went to West Kirby the other day, I had an ice cream, I can’t remember 
the last time I did that.  My daughter has recently been able to go away on holiday, she 
organised with the agency the support I would need when she was away, all worked out 
fine. 
 
The best things about having a Personal Budget is not having to rely on my daughter and 
bringing her out of work all the time, we now have a proper mother and daughter 
relationship again.  I have more control and choice in my life, I feel safer, knowing I have 
nice people coming to help me daily.  I feel my life is worth living again. 
 
Same question for the carer 
 
Mum is great, it is lovely to see her smiling again, she looks a lot better and has lots to tell 
me when I visit.  She still loves spending Sundays with me and my family, it feels more 
relaxed, I love watching her enjoying her food again.  I really enjoyed my recent holiday, I 
doubt mum even missed me.  I have confidence in the support she receives.  I am not as 
stressed and tired as I use to be.  I have more time to spend with her to just chat as we 
use to do.  Mums Personal Budget has changed hers and my life. 
 
Reflections from the Assessment Support Officer 
 
I have seen the way in which a Personal Budget can work for an individual.  It was a very 
daunting process for the individual and their carer, and for me initially, however it was 
important to never lose sight of what they both wanted to achieve. 
 Page 36



 
25

Personal Budgets have so much more flexibility.  They enable and empower people to live 
their life how they choose to do so.  I have seen such a difference especially with the 
individual and her carer; they both have a life now, individually and as mother and 
daughter.  Prior to Personal Budgets I feel the system took away peoples chance to live a 
flexible life. 
 
The process was very smooth and it was clear what they wanted to achieve and it helped 
that the carer was very supportive.  It would have been much more difficult if there was no 
one to assist with managing the budget.  In some cases I know that this won’t happen and 
there will be a lot of challenges surrounding Personal Budgets and individuals wanting to 
manage their support and budget.  However over time I see them having a positive affect 
on many people’s lives. 
 
It has given me so much satisfaction knowing that a Personal Budget and the support I 
have given has had such an impact on the woman’s life and also her daughters and her 
families’ life.  I did find the process so much longer and yes it can sometimes feel quite 
stressful, however putting that aside it has made a difference, its individual and mum and 
daughter are happy. 
 
It is very hard to know what I would change about the process as each case brings its own 
challenges and it is an ongoing learning curve. 
 
 

Page 37



 
26

Case Study 2 
 
I am a wheelchair user and have moderate learning difficulties. When I first heard about 
the Personal Budget I requested to have one, as the care package I used to get often 
limited my choices.  I used to live in shared accommodation with two other people and 
things that were important to me, I sometimes felt let down with, because the carers had to 
take care of all of us together.  I even missed a really important event to me because we 
were an hour and a half late, which really upset me.  I wanted to be more independent and 
make my own decisions. 
 
I applied for the Personal Budget and at first it was difficult to get, because of my shared 
accommodation and care.  However, as soon as I moved out I was able to apply for 
everything I need.  I felt unsure at first about the self-directed assessment and support 
plan, but my mum and social worker helped me a lot.  I feel it takes into account all my 
needs and the biggest difference in my life with a Personal Budget, is that it is based 
around me and what I want.  It has really helped me to feel more independent.  It was 
difficult to set up the Personal Budget but once I got it was really good.  It took a few 
months to get everything into place.  My mum and social services help me to decide 
everything that I wanted to do.  I couldn’t have done it without my Mum’s help though. 
  
My experience of getting a Personal Budget has been very positive.  I also feel very 
positive that I will receive the right help and support in the future.  These types of forms 
centre around my needs and wishes, although they are difficult and sometimes long-
winded to fill in, it is worth it when everything is in place.  It has helped me decide what is 
important to me, what I wanted to be different and the ways I can still get the support I 
need. 
 
Now I can decide who I see and when I see them.  Because I can swap and change, I feel 
more in control of what is going on.  I have also had an advocate to help me with my 
finances and set up most of my direct debits.  My new home is adapted for my needs and I 
have Assistive Technology to call on someone if I need to. I get very jumpy and wary if I’m 
on my own for long, especially during night times.  I think I could do with some more 
personal care hours because my Mum spends so much time with me in between the 
carers that visit.  She helps me to feel safe at home.  I sometimes wish Mum had more 
support too.  I hope I will feel more confident as time passes.  I applied for more care hours 
but couldn’t get them.  The Personal Budget has however included or considered all my 
needs.  I get help with getting washed and dressed, getting in and out of bed, practical stuff 
like washing and shopping.  I’ve even had advice to help me lose weight.  It’s helped me to 
socialise and get out more in the community when I want, and to feel more independent 
and in control.  I feel listened to and I can now have more family and friends to visit me, as 
I have got my own living space and I can decide what I want to do. 
 
My voice as a person using services has been listened to and acted on.  I know how to find 
out information about services and problems are sorted fairly quickly and simply.  I know 
my safety is of the utmost importance to everyone who cares for me.  I can rely on getting 
the right care (although I could do with more hours).  Since having a Personal Budget I 
have an improvement in my well-being and health.  I do feel happier having more choice.  
Personal Budgets give you more options, and I think they are a good idea. 
 

Page 38



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
18 JANUARY 2011 
 
REPORT OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
PROGRESS REPORT ON REIMBURSEMENT IN RELATION TO PUBLIC 
INTEREST DISCLOSURE ACT 1998 (PIDA) 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to update members of the Health and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny committee on progress in implementing reimbursement to 
certain residents and former residents of Bermuda Road, Curlew Way and 
Edgehill Road following the agreement of Cabinet to the recommendations of this 
Committee.   
 
An update on the project to reimburse the 16 individuals provides the following 
progress: relatives of the 4 deceased people have received reimbursements; one 
person with capacity has received their’s; the department has been appointed 
deputy by the Court of Protection for one person without capacity and payment 
has been made, all other repayments are awaiting the appointment of a deputy in 
order for the payments to be made. 
 
This item falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 This paper provides a progress report on the work undertaken to proceed 

with reimbursing sixteen individuals who were identified as eligible for a 
payment following a decision by Cabinet on 14 January 2010.  Twelve of 
these people who currently use services are still alive and four people are 
now deceased.   

 
1.2 Each of the twelve individuals had been provided with an advocate, ten 

with Wirral Mind, one with Mencap and one with Advocacy in Wirral.  
 
2 Reimbursement Task Force 
 
2.1 A task force meeting has been held regularly since February 2010 in order 

to the review progress with advocates on individual cases and discuss any 
issues.  The meetings have been attended by advocates, Weightmans 
Solicitors and Council staff, including individuals from finance, welfare 
benefits and operational services. 

 
2.2 Reimbursement has been paid to one of the twelve individuals in July 2010 

who had capacity. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 39



2.3 Reimbursement has been paid in respect of one individual who did not 
have capacity.  In this case the Director of the Department of Adult Social 
Services has become deputy in the absence of anyone else able or willing 
to do so, and the payment has been made to the deputy in December 
2010. 

 
3  Office of the Public Guardian 
 
3.1 Where issues of capacity have arisen in relation to making payments for 

reimbursements, the department has liaised with the Compliance and 
Regulation Unit of the Office of the Public Guardian to agree the actions to 
be taken on those cases.  They advised to complete capacity 
assessments on all individuals and where they do not have capacity an 
application should be made to the Court of Protection.  If they do have 
capacity then the reimbursement can go ahead to the individual.   

 
3.2 The department will make the applications to the Court where there is not 

an appropriate person able or willing to do so, such as a family member. 
 
3.3 Initial capacity assessments have been completed for all twelve individuals 

and they are currently at varying stages: 
 

• One person did have capacity and has been reimbursed in July 
2010 

• One person did not have capacity, confirmed by their GP.  The 
department applied to the Court and deputyship was granted in 
November 2010.  Reimbursement was paid to the deputy in 
December 2010. 

• One person who did not have capacity confirmed by their GP and 
the department applied to the court of protection. The order has 
now been granted for the DASS to act as deputy. The 
reimbursement payment will now be made without further delay.      

• Six people did not have capacity, confirmed by their GP.  The 
department has applied to the Court for deputyship and is awaiting 
the outcome for five people. An order for one individual has been 
received and this should mean that the department is able to make 
this reimbursement payment in the New Year.  

• One person did not have capacity and we are awaiting confirmation 
from the GP.  If the GP agrees then the department will apply to 
become deputy. 

• Two people do not have capacity, confirmed by GP and their 
relatives are applying to the Court to become deputy. 

 
3.4   Where applications have been made to the Court of Protection, the 

department expects these five applications to be completed by the end of 
January after which reimbursements can be made without further delay.  
This will leave three applications to be progressed following the decision 
from the GP and the applications to become deputy being made by the 
relatives. 

 

Page 40



4  Contact with the individuals and their relatives 
 
4.1 Letters were written to the families of those affected by re-imbursements in 

August 2010.  An update was given in relation to applications to the Court 
of Protection. Families were invited to contact relevant people in the 
department with respect to the role of the deputy. The department agreed 
to become deputy for ten of the twelve individuals. 

 
4.2 For the two relatives who wished to become deputy, the relevant 

personnel within the department were made available to explain the 
process and to assist with the completion of the forms. 

 
5 Advocacy Involvement 
 
5.1 The advocates have continued to work extensively with the individuals 

concerned, completing best interest assessments and working with other 
relevant people including families and key workers. One advocate 
terminated his involvement in December 2010 with one individual, so 
alternative advocacy services have been offered. 

 
5.2 The advocates will continue to be involved after the repayments are made 

to ensure that the reimbursement monies paid will be used in the best 
interests of the individuals.  The advocates have reported positively on the 
support provided to the individuals and the care they receive. 

 
6 Future Progress 
 
6.1 Progress in making payment for the remaining individuals is dependent on 

the progress of the applications to the Court of Protection but with all the 
preparatory work now completed by the advocates, once orders have 
been made by the Court, reimbursement can proceed without delay. 

 
7 Project Closure 
 
7.1 Once all the individuals are reimbursed, this project will be closed.  An 

estimate of final time scales would be to make all reimbursement 
payments by 31 March 2011, contingent on the orders being made by the 
court of protection 

 
7.2 The work completed as part of this project would ensure that if there were 

any further monies to be paid to the individuals involved this could be 
progressed without further delay. 

 
8 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 The total cost of reimbursement is £243,460.  To date £86,885 has been 

paid.  At Cabinet on 14 January 2010 it was agreed to provide the sum of 
£243,000 to meet the cost of the reimbursements. 

 
 

Page 41



9 Staffing Implications 
 
9.1 There are none. 
 
10 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
10.1 This issue has concerned the fairness of the Council’s charges to a group 

of people with learning disabilities. 
 
11 Community Safety Implications 
 
11.1 There are none. 
 
12 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
12.1 There are none. 
 
13 Planning Implications 
 
13.1 There are none.  
 
14 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
14.1 Part of the concern with previous practice was the impact on individuals 

with capital resources. 
  
15 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
15.1 The objective of supported living schemes is to enable disadvantaged 

individuals to have more independence and integration in the community. 
  
16 Local Member Support Implications 
 
16.1 The houses concerned are in Moreton Ward. 
 
17 Health Implications 
 
17.1 None as a result of this report. 
 
18 Background Papers 
 
18.1 Previous reports to Committee and Cabinet 
 
18.2 Letter received from the Office of the Public Guardian 
 

Page 42



19 Recommendations 
 
 That; 
 

(1) The report be noted. 
(2) The Committee is informed when the final reimbursement payment 
 has been made. 

 
 
HOWARD COOPER 
Interim Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:  
18 JANUARY 2011 
 
JOINT REPORT OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
AND THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S DEPARTMENT 
 
TRANSITION SERVICES - UPDATE REPORT 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides an up-date to Committee Members of the Development and 
Progress of Transition Services following the agreed formation in January 2010 of 
a joint Social Care Team of both Children and Adult Services staff to improve the 
experience of young people with learning disabilities as they move from children’s 
into adult services.  A previous report was submitted to the Children’s Overview 
and Scrutiny committee on 2 June 2010 on this topic. 
  
The new team, based within the Dept of Adult Social Services at Westminster 
House, supports joint planning from the age of 14, have taken on the majority of 
social care casework responsibility from the age of 16, and continue a role until 
an appropriate point in the young person’s life to pass onto a relevant service 
within the authority.  
 
Significant links have been established and developed with key partner agencies 
across the authority which is seen as further consolidation of a holistic service for 
young people with learning disabilities living in Wirral. 
 
This item falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 Transition for young people with a disability has been highlighted as an 

area of concern by the Government over a number of years. Transition will 
always be a time which provokes anxieties for young people and parents 
due to the fact that it involves changes in expectations of services and the 
people who will offer support. There are differences regarding the eligibility 
of people for services due to the different legislation under which services 
for children and adults are provided; without effective transition processes, 
there is the potential for difficulties to arise as expectations of families 
exceed the skills and resources available. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



 

1.2 Valuing People Now (2008) recommended that each local area has a 
multi-agency transition strategy. The guidance defines disabled children as 
including young people with special educational needs in its broadest 
terms as those young people who receive support at a school action and 
action plus level besides those in receipt of a statement of special 
educational needs. Transition Guidance was produced on behalf of the 
Government by the Council for Disabled Children in 2008. (Department of 
Children, Schools and Families/Department of Health transition guides : (A 
transition guide for all services and Transition: Moving on Well.)  

 
1.3 The National Transition Support Team (NTST) have, over the last three 

years, been monitoring how the Council, NHS Wirral and other key partner 
agencies are working together to improve multi agency working, on behalf 
of the Government.  

 
1.4 In December 2009 the Council completed a second Transition Self 

Assessment Questionnaire which allowed us to illustrate progress this 
authority had made to extend expectations of partnership working and 
engagement with parents and young people. It is evident that for disabled 
young people and their families to experience positive support during 
transition, a wide range of agencies, departments and processes need to 
work together effectively. Wirral was placed nationally within the second of 
three categories of ‘satisfactory development’ and received a financial 
support package of £25k in 2010  to further our development, plus a 
consultative support member from the NTST  to assist our work and those 
of our neighbouring NW Authorities. 

 
1.5 Self Assessment Questionnaire 3 has now been completed and submitted 

in December 2010 but excludes further financial reward ahead of the 
NTST ceasing to exist as from April 2011. The report was able to portray 
significant multi-agency developments within this authority and it is hoped 
will improve our standing nationally at the conclusion of the support 
programme.   

 
1.6   The service development proposals placed before committee twelve 

months previous were seen as a first step towards a more integrated 
model and to provide social care support for young people with Learning 
Difficulties. During this initial year, it is suggested, these aims have been 
met and surpassed with personnel from Children and Young People’s 
Department, Department of Adult Social Services, Connexions and Health  
input from Benefits Advisors, Housing and Employment working closely 
together. It remains a longer term vision for the service to collectively be 
sited within the new build Special Needs College on the Twelve Quays 
campus.   

 
1.7 The ambition for the service is to aspire to the best support that enables 

young people to achieve as independent a life as possible as they move 
into adulthood. 

 

Page 46



 

“We are talking about the future, which wasn’t happening before” - parent 
of a 16 year old attending a Wirral Special School.   

 
2 Current Service Activity 
 
2.1 A revised Transition Protocol is to be launched in January 2011. This 

followed extensive discussion with all agencies working with young people 
in transition and consultation with young people and their families. The 
final consultation with Strategic Managers across all partner agencies will 
complete this process for publication. The new Protocol will aim to reflect 
the development of Personalisation into the lives of young people.  As part 
of the improved planning contained within the protocol an Operational 
Group was developed in 2008 to meet monthly, tasked with ensuring 
young people are being tracked through transition effectively. The success 
of this group has led to continued reports of significant improved 
performance within the Annual Performance Assessment.  

 
2.2 The strategic planning group, responsible for the protocol publication, has 

recently extended its membership in line with additional partners 
suggested by the NTST to include Housing, Leisure Services, young 
person representation and additional parental involvement 

 
2.3 A Pathway Plan has been devised to assist young people and their 

parents, produced in an illustrative and easy to understand format, 
portraying the transition process as reflected in the protocol. This has 
received regional and national acclaim through the NHS North West 
Inspection Team who have recommended projection nationally and the 
National Chair of Learning Disability Partnership Boards.  Members may 
wish to view the Plan which will be on display in the Wallasey Town Hall 
and will be circulated around schools and key venues throughout the year. 

 
2.4 Health Action Plans have been revised and developed to be used 

extensively and act as a health passport for young people with a disability; 
a roll-out programme of their use for all ‘statemented’ young people is 
currently being progressed via schools and annual medicals.  In addition 
improved links are now in place within NHS Wirral for adult health support 
for young people on reaching adulthood with Community Matrons taking 
case responsibility from 18, a development in recognition to improved 
health services and life expectancy. 

 
2.5 As a consequence a more rigorous appraisal of appropriate responsibility 

for funding of support packages is now in place across both children’s and 
adult services with resultant overall savings for Social Care.  

 

Page 47



 

2.6 A co-ordinated link has been established between Fieldwork Services, 
Schools and Connexions with Adult Day Service Providers to provide 
information to parents, young people and staff of the range of service 
provision available for those entitled to a service. The link co-ordinator, 
attached to the Transition Team, under the direction of the Team Manager, 
has been able to organise attendance at young people’s annual education 
reviews and introduce them to potential services. This has been met with 
huge enthusiasm by schools and parents. 

 
“I was reluctant to go and see what was out there but was encouraged to 
by my son’s Headteacher – brilliant, so glad I did.” Parent.  

 
It is hoped to produce a DVD to further aid illustration of services early in 
2011 which will open access to many more families as they plan for their 
future, offering greater choice and control. 

 
2.7 Annual education reviews for young people have been significantly 

developed using a Person Centred Plan approach, involving young people 
and their families to achieve a much improved system to plan more 
effectively for their future and deliver improved outcomes around choice 
and control.  Following a training programme financed through the 
Learning and Skills Council in 2009 of appropriate school and local college 
staff, there has been a significant roll-out programme across Special 
Schools during 2010; this has been supplemented this year from the NTST 
funding to run Parent Awareness Courses that have engaged parents in a 
better understanding and participation in their child’s future planning. 

 
“The course has been really good. I started not knowing what I was 
coming to and am leaving having learnt so much about planning for child 
X’s future. The six days were just right to fit everything in and I didn’t feel it 
was too drawn out or squashed in. P and T (facilitators) have done an 
excellent job and I think it definitely made a difference that they are parent 
carers”. Parent and course participant.   

 
2.8 Improved communication and consultation with young people has been 

achieved through our Advocacy Services based with WIRED. Young 
people have been engaged in consultation both in schools via arranged 
meetings, the development of School Councils and in local youth groups 
and club environments.  Opportunities are being sought to continue this 
programme to have inclusion of young people representation at strategic 
meetings but as a minimum to have advocates attend to represent views 
expressed. 

 
2.9 Active involvement has been achieved through young peoples inclusion in 

the now established monthly ‘Disability Issues Radio Programme’ in our 
association with a local community radio station, which actively highlights 
transition issues on each programme whatever the subject matter. Topics 
planned for this year will include housing, employment, training and further 
education opportunities.  Members may wish to listen to recent 
programmes via the web site of Seven Waves Radio. 

Page 48



 

2.10 Links with our council Housing Dept and Housing Providers has been an 
encouraging development over this past year and a clear link for transition 
with the Housing Strategy in development.  Tangible outcomes have been 
achieved with two significant groups of families moving towards 
implementation of Supported Living with secured properties and providers 
showing a much greater awareness and willingness to identify suitable 
properties for young people given early identification through transition. 

 
2.11 Transition Services has been given a clear remit in responsibility for those 

young people attending residential college. As a consequence significant 
developments have been made with our partner agencies over the past 
twelve months to an achievement that young people and their families 
have a clear knowledge and feeling of support from this authority whilst 
away at college. 

 
Over the past two years all partner agencies have been committed to 
promote local further education facilities, only supporting independent 
options when appropriate; the result has seen a dramatic decrease in 
numbers of our young people going to residential colleges from 16 
returnees in July 2010 to a probable 2 to be supported in application for 
September 2011. 

 
“Having started at Wirral Metropolitan College this year we now have a 
future where we as parents have a life as well as the young person” – 
Parent. 

 
For those currently away at college families are aware that Transition 
Services are there to offer support when necessary having been invited to 
join professionals in a relaxed meeting during 2010, which will be repeated 
in 2011. All second and third year students have an allocated Social 
Worker and a Person Centred Plan is in place for their wishes on return to 
the Wirral.  

 
2.12 As indicated above, the NTST awarded Wirral a further Transition Budget 

from the completion of the second Self Assessment Questionnaire. 
Significant projects funded from this award have included: 

 
Ø Production of  Transition DVD; this will be finalised for circulation in 

January 2011 and will be embedded in an ‘e-book’ on our web sites of 
‘Teen Wirral’ and ‘i-choose Wirral’  

 
Ø A Directory of Services – this includes case studies and useful 

additional information for young people and their parents; this has 
already been placed on our web sites as well as hard copies available 
for circulation 

 
Ø Transition Information Packs – these are being circulated to schools 

and across agencies for wide circulation 
 
Ø Person Centred Planning – Parent Awareness Training 

Page 49



 

 
Ø Local ‘Parent Led’ Transition Conference – this has produced 

significant information directly from parents that is assisting to 
formulate current and future policy direction and led directly to funding 
commitments of this budget. 

 
3 The Transition Team 
 
3.1 The Social Care Team comprises a Team Manager, two qualified Social 

Workers from Children’s Services plus two qualified Social Workers and 
one unqualified post from the Department of Adult Social Services. Direct 
line management responsibility is provided from the DASS Service 
Manager, where the team is located with management availability from 
CYPD as necessary.  A joint departmental protocol is being developed to 
ensure that there are robust management and governance arrangements 
to cover child protection and vulnerable adult concerns. 

 
3.2 During this first 12 month period development has progressed to 

encompass all staff taking case responsibility for both Children’s and Adult 
Transition cases; this means that a young person moving through their 
transition will not have a change of Social Worker at a key time in their life 
which previously was the case.  To do so training is being provided on key 
elements such as Child and Adult Protection, Looked After Children and 
Information Technology and has the support of Senior Management 
across both Departments. 

 
3.3 A further responsibility for the service are those young people with a 

disability who are in or recently left the care of the Local Authority; a 
service as part of the Pathway Team for these young people is provided 
through part time post.  

 
3.4  From April 2010 all young people moving through their transition have 

been assessed using the new Adult Services assessment process as part 
of the pilot study for Personal Budgets .Now a fully rolled out programme 
across Adult Services, staff are becoming more skilled in working with 
families to produce their ‘Support Plan’. These plans allow an improved 
reflection of young people’s wishes and ambitions and those of their family 
with increased opportunities available to them and an ability to deliver 
improved outcomes, increase choice and control and for young people and 
their families to make a positive contribution. 

 
“As a parent I really did feel involved and in control of the process working 
alongside my Social Worker; as a family we all got involved in planning for 
the future and are all happy with our outcomes”.  Parent. 

 
3.5 It is hoped the experience of this process within the Transition Team will 

now be used to good effect within Children’s Services as initial pilot studies 
are undertaken; proposals are being considered for all those approaching 
the service at 16years of age can be assessed for a Personal Budget 
which would hopefully aid their transition between the two departments. 

Page 50



 

3.6  It should be stressed that in addition to the Social Care element of the 
team all key partner agencies have identified key staff to participate and 
contribute to a Transition Service development at both Strategic and 
Operational level. This has led to an overall improved service for young 
people moving through their transition. 

 
4 Communication / Activities / Publicity 
 
4.1 Transition Services have actively been involved in a range of events, 

presentations, consultations and support meetings. This has been on both 
a local and regional basis. 
 

4.2 A third “Your Future, Your Choice” information event was arranged in 
November, held at the Floral Pavilion, with close co-operation between 
staff from Social Inclusion and Social Care branches of the Council, 
Connexions and NHS Wirral. The event has been seen as a major 
success in sharing information to young people and their carers and to 
assist them in making choices and decisions regarding their futures.  
Attended by over 600 young people, parents, carers and professionals it is 
hoped this can continue as an annual event having attracted local, regional 
and national acclaim for both the event and associated materials 
produced. 

 
Funding to allow this event to continue will need to be considered; to date 
funding has been provided by the Learning and Skills Council which 
ceased to exist in April 2010. It is hoped a financial commitment can be 
made across all partner agencies despite the current economic climate 
and will receive committee support.  

 
4.3 Regional Transition Programme Event – Wirral was recently asked to 

present to the regional group as an example of good practice our work as 
a ‘multi-agency working model of transition practice’. A well received 
presentation was made by the Team Manager and NHS colleague Co-
ordinator.  The working model presented was recently recognised and 
received a national nomination at an awards ceremony held in London run 
via the NHS in association with a National Health Journal. 

 
4.4 Transition Services are now regularly invited to attend the Parents 

Evenings at all Secondary Special Schools and attend with a range of 
agency representation. In addition invites are received to attend various 
parent support group meetings both in school and local community; very 
positive feedback has been received. 

 

Page 51



 

5 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with the establishment and 

continuation of the Transition Team; as reported previously these are 
already Children’s and Adult Social Services employees who are now co-
located in the Westminster House Office. The Team is delivering an 
improved joined up service which has improved the efficiency and 
effectiveness of services for older young people as they transition into 
adulthood.  

 
6 Staffing 
 
6.1 Current staffing continues as previously detailed of Team Manager, 2 

Social Workers and 1 part-time assistant from Children’s Services, whilst 
Adult Services contribute 2 Social Workers and 1 Support Officer.  

 
6.2 The service is hosted by the Department of Adult Social Services and Line 

Management Responsibility now lies with the Adult Learning Disability 
Service Manager. 

 
7 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
 Social care services are provided to the most vulnerable people in the 

Borough.  Services are provided following a fair and open assessment 
process and improvements in the transition process will enhance the life 
opportunities of young people with disabilities. 

 
8 Community Safety Implications 
 
 Social care services assist in managing risks appropriately and therefore 

enable people to maintain their independence safely within the community. 
 
9 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
 None arising from this report. 
 
10 Planning Implications 
 
 None arising from this report. 
 
11 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
 None arising from this report. 
 
12 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
 Improvements in the transition process will ensure that young people’s 

needs to maintain independence and take an appropriate part in their local 
community are addressed.  

 

Page 52



 

13 Local Member Support Implications 
 
 People who use social care services live in all parts of the Borough.   
 
14 Background Papers 
 

§ A Transition Guide for all Services – a view of all the services that 
need to work together to ensure appropriate support for disabled young 
people life.  

§ Transition: Moving on Well good practice guide on effective transition 
from children's to adult services for young people with complex health 
needs.  

Both can be viewed and downloaded from  
http://www.dcsf.gov.uk/everychildmatters/resources-andpractice/IG00322/. 
 

15 Recommendations 
 
15.1 That Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the content of this report, and   

continue their support of the Transition Services Team and its future 
development. 

 
 
HOWARD COOPER     
Interim Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 53



 

Appendix 1 
 
Case Studies: Taken from ‘Your Future Your Choice’ Directory 2011 
 

1. BG 
 
Hi, I’m BG; I’m 16 and I am currently on a Foundation Learning Programme 
leading to an Apprenticeship in Motor Vehicle Engineering with Rocket 
Training. 
 
Whilst at Claremount School I did my work experience at Rocket Training in 
MVE. I worked in the workshop, learning basic skills and also in the 
classroom, learning about health and safety. I enjoyed this so much I decided 
to apply for an apprenticeship when I left school. I had my first interview with 
the recruitment team leader, who advised the best way for me to go forward 
was through the Foundation Learning route which could then lead me to an 
apprenticeship in MVE. 
 
The FL Programme gives me the support I require to build up my skills and 
knowledge in English, Maths, ICT and preparation for work. I can work at my 
own pace and complete units leading to qualifications that are relevant to 
MVE. 
 
My basic skills in Maths and English were low but through workbooks I can 
complete at home and through support in the classroom and the friendly 
atmosphere at the centre, I have now improved. 
 
I am glad I followed the advice as I am able to study towards my aim, which is 
to become a mechanic. 
 
 
2. EL 
 
19yr old E has Down’s Syndrome and has just left Special School. 
 
E started at Sainsbury’s in 2008 on Work Experience from school; she 
continued her work experience and grew in confidence, proved herself as a 
valuable member of the team and was offered employment for two days a 
week as a Checkout Operator. E attends Wirral Met College 3 days per week. 
E received Travel Training whilst at school to help her get to and from work 
independently. Sainsbury’s have assigned a member of staff as E’s mentor 
and they get on really well. Sainbury’s are exceptionally supportive but treat E 
like any other employee and say she is a valued member of the team. 
 
 

Page 54



 

3. BJ 
 
BJ is a young man with complex learning and physical disabilities. He 
attended a specialist school prior to his local college. He and his family 
require support from a range of providers to enable him to be as physically fit 
as possible, to access local services and to develop and learn new skills.He 
has some support at home to get him out of bed and ready for his day. BJ is 
now also swimming on a regular basis, attending college, accessing transport 
and is happily living at home. With this range of support in place, his parents 
are in a stronger position to support him effectively at home. He is 
encouraged to embrace his cultural background and to undertake new 
challenges. 
 
 
4. CS 
 
My name is C; I’m 20 yrs of age and I have just moved into my own flat. 
Before this I was in care then moved to a supported family placement where I 
learned lots of skills to help prepare me for living in my own flat. 
 
I learnt how to travel be myself on public transport and this was a massive 
achievement and allowed me to have lots of choice and control over my life. 
I have my own bedroom, kitchen and bathroom, I even have my own small 
garden; I love the garden and I have already bought furniture and a BBQ 
ready for next summer. 
 
I was a little bit nervous before I moved in as it was such a big step for me but 
I am really enjoying myself. I have lots to learn and I am always busy. 
There is always someone on site to help me if anything happens and I have 
individual support to help me with cooking, shopping and managing my 
money, but I am being encouraged to become independent and develop 
important skills for my future. 
 
I have strong links with the local community and I spend lots of time with my 
family close by. 
 
I go to Wirral Met College three days per week and I travel there myself. I am 
studying Skills for Working Life, because one day I would like to have a job. 

 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
18 JANUARY 2011 
 
REPORT OF THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT FROM THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report outlines the proposals for commissioning and procurement from the 
voluntary sector.  This item falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The voluntary, community and faith sector is central to the provision of 

services to vulnerable people which promote wellbeing, reduce the risk of 
deterioration in an individual and which help to maintain independence at 
home.  Within Wirral, the sector has held this position for many years. 

 
1.2 Recent government policy emphasises the role of the voluntary sector 

within communities, as offering opportunities for meaningful occupation, 
and as a means of service delivery. 

 
1.3 Since 2007, the emphasis on personalisation within Adult Social Services 

means that individuals have more choice and control over the services 
they receive.  At the same time there is a shift towards early intervention 
and prevention, which includes the provision of information and advice so 
that people are fully informed to make choices, and practical support 
which can be accessed without first undergoing an assessment of need.  
These elements of the personalisation agenda may well deflect 
individuals away from more formal community care services or delay the 
need to ask for and receive costed packages of care. 

 
1.4 The Department of Adult Social Services has a commitment to the 

voluntary sector of £2,137,000.14 in 2010/11.  Services range from 
luncheon clubs through to advocacy, information and advice, through to 
support services for people with substance misuse, through to day care 
for older people.  Many of the contracts have been in place for a number 
of years. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 57



 

 

1.5 Developments within Adult Social Services over the past several years 
away from direct care provision seem set to continue.  To date, the 
opportunities offered by such developments have been taken up by the 
independent sector.  However, there is a drive to make better use of the 
voluntary, community and faith sector in the area of care provision.  In 
order to do this, the Department needs to make use of intelligence 
gained by analysing need, tracking the current levels and patterns of 
service and forecasting trends to commission from the voluntary, 
community and faith sector. 

 
1.6 In order to build the market within this sector, there may need to be some 

development work and also an approach to procurement which takes 
account of the role that voluntary agencies play in the life of local 
communities. 

 
1.7 The Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Group of the Comprehensive 

Engagement Strategy has provided a vehicle to establish a set of 
principles by which the voluntary sector services will be commissioned 
and to deliver a framework in which there is a clear rationale for the 
commissioning and procurement of voluntary sector services.  The 
Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Group is made up of senior 
representatives from several Local Authority Departments, NHS Wirral 
and Voluntary and Community Action Wirral. 

 
2 Framework for Commissioning 
 
2.1 An Early Intervention Strategy for Wirral was agreed by Cabinet in July 

2010.  This follows the principle that at every stage of a person’s life, 
there is the possibility of making sure that they stay well or, if they have a 
long-term condition or illness, that they do not deteriorate more quickly 
than they would if there was no intervention, or that they can be 
maintained in their own home for a long as possible, including up to their 
death.  The Strategy is an essential part of the transformation agenda for 
social care and is primarily aimed at older people and people with a 
disability. 
 

2.2 The model for early intervention is split across seven themes: 
§ Building Communities 
§ Citizenship 
§ Healthier Communities 
§ Information and Advice 
§ Practical Support 
§ Enablement 
§ Maintaining Independence 

 
2.3 It can be used in a variety of ways to help establish where the gaps in 

funding exist or where particular population groups are not receiving 
attention, or to increase targeting of resources:  for example, in tackling 
health inequalities.  The themes are cross referenced with population 
groups, e.g. older people, carers, people with a learning disability, 
unemployed people (the Framework is attached in Appendix 1). 

Page 58



 

 

2.4 Therefore, although the themes were developed primarily for social care, 
there is applicability across a wider area of possible commissioning. 

 
3 Progress 
 
3.1 A set of principles based on good practice, the Compact and the aims 

and objectives has been established (please see Appendix 2 attached). 
 
3.2 A timetable has been established, which is currently mapping all services 

delivered and funded by NHS Wirral and/or the Local Authority against 
the Early Intervention Framework. 

 
3.3 In order to make sure that stability is maintained in the sector while the 

process is carried out, the proposal is to roll forward all voluntary sector 
contracts into 2011/12, in accordance with the Cabinet resolution of 9 
December, in which all voluntary sector contracts will be renewed until 
the end of June 2011. 

 
3.4 The following priority areas have been identified as those which will be 

targeted in the first instance: 
§ Information and Advice 
§ Practical Support 
§ Healthy Living 

 
3.5 The three areas are all central to the “Vision for Adult Social Care:  

Capable Communities and Active Citizens”, a document which sets out 
‘over-arching principles for adult social care and gives context for future 
reform’ (Department of Health 2010). 

 
3.5.1 This means an approach whereby commissioning priority for future need 

is established.  After discussions with Voluntary Community Action 
Wirral, the decision was taken to concentrate on the above three areas 
rather than try and address all of the voluntary sector services at once.  
Several organisations will provide services across the range of seven 
themes of the Early Intervention Strategy and this could cause confusion 
and unsettle whole organisations unnecessarily. 

 
3.5.2 Notice has been served by the provider of two practical support services, 

which are long-standing and grant-aided; this affords an opportunity to 
re-examine how these services will be needed in the future and to clarify 
the target group. 

 
3.5.3 There is an outstanding review of luncheon clubs from 2008 which will 

need to be completed. 
 
3.5.4 A recent draft strategy on Information, Advice and Advocacy 

demonstrated the importance of these areas in any future provision of 
services. 

 
3.5.5 The Public Health Department is taking the opportunity to review existing 

contracts within this framework. 

Page 59



 

 

3.6 A workshop for the community, voluntary and faith sectors on this 
approach (18 November 2010) has taken place and has been well 
received. 

 
3.7 The original intention of the approach was to bring together all of the 

funding to the voluntary sector from the NHS and Council Departments, 
which are aimed at people over the age of 18.  However, the recent 
White Paper for Health “Equity and Excellence:  liberating the NHS” 
means that there will be significant changes to the way in which services 
are commissioned by the NHS.  At this stage, therefore, the proposal will 
concentrate on voluntary and community services commissioned and 
procured by the Local Authority and, in particular, the Department of 
Adult Social Services. 

 
4 Conclusion 

 
4.1 The role of the community, voluntary and faith sector is central to 

maintaining the welfare of people in Wirral, particularly the most 
vulnerable. 

 
4.2 It has, however, been reliant on short-term and sometimes uncertain 

funding.  It has not enjoyed the same level of contractual arrangements 
as other organisations in the private sector.  Many of the arrangements 
are long-standing and historical with a few monitoring arrangements in 
place.  The sector is grant-funded for the most part, and while this may 
be suitable in some areas, there are others which may need to move to a 
different basis. 

 
4.3 Current arrangements are not efficient or effective and statutory 

organisations are not always aware of each other’s funding 
arrangements.  The Commissioning and Procurement sub-group will 
address and resolve these issues. 

 
5 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The Department of Adult Social Services has a financial commitment to 

the voluntary sector of over £2 million in 2010/11.  Internal Audit are 
currently undertaking an audit of all funding from every Department and 
this will be used to clarify the total amount of funding into this sector by 
the Local Authority. 

 
6 Staffing Implications 
 
6.1 There are no staffing implications. 
 
7 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
7.1 Funding to the voluntary and community sector is aimed at the most 

vulnerable people in Wirral, either through age or disability or who are 
socially excluded in other ways. 

 

Page 60



 

 

8 Community Safety Implications 
 
8.1 There are no community safety implications from this report. 
 
9 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
9.1 The report has relevance to Strategic Issue 4: healthy people, safer 

places and Strategic Issue 5: a caring environment for everyone, 
including the provision of equal access for all to information, people and 
services. 

 
10 Planning Implications 
 
10.1 There are no known issues arising from this report. 
 
11 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
11.1 Voluntary, community and faith sector organisations are central to the 

uptake of information and advice which reduces the risk of poverty. 
 
12 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
12.1 Voluntary, community and faith sector organisations are central to social 

inclusion, providing opportunities for volunteering and meaningful 
occupation, as well as for service delivery. 

 
13 Local Member Support Implications 
 
13.1 This report covers Wirral-wide services. 
 
14 Health Implications 
 
14.1 The principles of healthy living are a key element of the approach to 

commissioning and procurement from the voluntary sector. 
 
15 Background Papers 
 
15.1 An Early Intervention Strategy for Wirral; Cabinet Report, July 2010 
 
16 Recommendations 
 
 (1) That the framework for commissioning and procurement from the

 voluntary sector is adopted by the Local Authority. 
 (2) That the principles of commissioning from the voluntary,  community 

 and faith sector are adopted by the Local Authority. 
 (3) That, following Cabinet resolution of 9 December, all Voluntary 

 Sector contracts be renewed until June 2011. 
 
 
HOWARD COOPER 
Interim Director of Adult Social Services 

Page 61



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

EARLY INTERVENTION AND PREVENTION FRAMEWORK FOR COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT FROM THE 
VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH SECTOR 

 
Target Group Citizenship Building 

Communities 
Healthier 

Communities 
Information 
and Advice 

Practical 
Support 

Enablement Maintaining 
Independence 

Older People 
 
 
 

      

People with physical 
disability or long 
term conditions 

 
 
 

      

People with mental 
health needs 

 
 
 

      

People with a 
learning disability 

 
 
 

      

People with 
substance misuse 
challenges 

 
 
 

      

Carers 
 
 
 

      

Areas of deprivation 
 
 
 

      

Unemployed people 
 
 
 

      

BME Communities 
 
 
 

      

 

P
age 62



 

 

Appendix 2 
 
PRINCIPLES OF COMMISSIONING & PROCUREMENT FROM THE 
VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH SECTOR 
 
 
♦ Understand the needs of users and other communities by ensuring that, 

alongside other consultees, we engage with the voluntary, community and 
faith sector organisations, as advocates, to access their specialist 
knowledge, and involve the voluntary, community and faith sector in setting 
priority outcomes for users. 

 
 
♦ Ensure that outcomes for users are at the heart of the strategic planning 

process, which includes capacity building for provider and communities, 
where appropriate. 

 
 
♦ Map the fullest practical range of providers with a view to understanding the 

contribution they could make to deliver those outcomes. 
 
 
♦ Ensure contracting processes are transparent, fair and streamlined, 

facilitating the involvement of the broadest range of suppliers, including 
sub-contracting and consortia building, where appropriate. 

 
 
♦ Ensure long-term contracts are given, where possible, as a means of 

achieving efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
 
♦ Seek feedback from service users, communities and providers in order to 

review the effectiveness and impact of the commissioning process in 
meeting local needs. 

 
 
♦ Priority will be given within the procurement process to organisations and 

services which can demonstrate added social value. 
 
 
♦ Develop innovative approaches to commissioning and procurement, 

including pooling of resources, where possible. 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY PROGRAMME BOARD 
26 OCTOBER 2010 

 
32. SCRUTINY TRAINING 
 
Further to minute 21 (20 September 2010), the Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management reported that the Member Training Steering Group had agreed that 
training for all Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members was a priority and that Dr 
Stephanie Snape, Research Director of the English Regions Network Research & 
Development Programme at the Institute of Governance & Public Management, 
University of Warwick, should be commissioned to provide it. Dr Snape had provided 
Wirral with training a few years ago and refresher training was seen as best practice. 
The cost of training by Dr Snape was £824 and could be open to all Members of the 
Council. The Democratic Services Manager presented Dr Snape’s short CV, 
together with examples of past and present work she had undertaken in relation to 
scrutiny. 
  
However, at the Informal Overview and Scrutiny Workshop (see minute 31 ante), 
Members had considered the proposed training arrangement. In the light of 
comments made by Members at the workshop, guidance was sought on how to 
proceed. Members commented specifically that it would be more cost effective for 
scrutiny training to be provided in-house. Members recognised the need for 
continued learning and expressed the view that Wirral should adopt best practice 
from other forward thinking and progressive local authorities. Members referred to 
the scrutiny of health from 2011 and referred specifically to the successful external 
scrutiny developed by Kirklees Council. 
  
Although Members regarded the health scrutiny training requirement as being a 
matter for the Health and Well Being O&S Committee, they expressed the view that 
an overview for all Members of the Council could be provided by the Director of 
Public Health. 
  
Members referred also to minute 19 (20 September 2010), which indicated that no 
further action should be taken in relation to improving the scrutiny function until the 
outcome of the deliberations by Group Leaders was known and the matter 
considered by the appropriate Committee. 
  
Resolved – 
  
(1) That in-house scrutiny training be provided on a political group basis, by 
the Scrutiny Support Officers, to be based on the I&DeA document ‘A hard nut 
to crack? Making overview and scrutiny work’ produced by Dr Snape. 
  
(2) That the Democratic Services Manager be requested to present a report to 
the next meeting of the Board upon research undertaken into the external 
scrutiny function at Kirklees Council, with a view to a visit to Kirklees by Board 
Members. 
  

Agenda Item 11

Page 65



(3) That the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management be requested to 
ascertain from the Group Leaders the outcome of their deliberations in relation 
to the scrutiny function and report his findings to the next meeting. 
  
(4) That the Health and Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Committee be 
requested to invite the Director of Public Health to provide an overview of 
health scrutiny and to invite all Members of the Council to attend. 
 

Page 66



U
p
d
at
ed
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
H
ea
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W
el
lb
ei
n
g
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
 

B
E
G
IN
N
IN
G
 O
F
 T
H
E
 M
U
N
IC
IP
A
L
 Y
E
A
R
 2
01
0 
/2
01
1 
 

(T
hi
s 
is
 a
 ro
lli
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 w
or
k 
an
d 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
ta
ke
n 
w
ith
 p
re
vi
ou
s 
ye
ar
s’
 w
or
k.
) 

It 
w
as
 a
gr
ee
d 
at
 th
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
Ch
ai
rs
 m
ee
tin
g 
to
 a
do
pt
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
to
 a
llo
w
 th
e 
co
m
m
itt
ee
 m
em

be
rs
 to
 m
on
ito
r t
he
ir 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

It 
is
 fe
lt 
th
at
 th
e 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
a 
‘li
vi
ng
’ d
oc
um

en
t a
nd
 a
s 
su
ch
 is
 in
te
nd
ed
 to
 a
ct
 a
s 
a 
gu
id
e 
fo
r t
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th
e 
ye
ar
, w
hi
le
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 

th
e 
de
gr
ee
 o
f f
le
xi
bi
lit
y 
ne
ed
ed
 to
 r
es
po
nd
 to
 a
ny
 e
m
er
gi
ng
 o
r 
pr
es
si
ng
 is
su
es
 a
s 
th
ey
 a
ris
e.
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
em

be
rs
, a
nd
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 th
e 
Ch
ai
r, 
sh
ou
ld
 h
av
e 
a 

m
aj
or
 ro
le
 in
 o
w
ni
ng
 a
nd
 m
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
  

 Th
e 
fin
al
 it
em
 o
n 
th
e 
ag
en
da
 fo
r e
ac
h 
Sc
ru
tin
y 
Co
m
m
itt
ee
 w
ill
 b
e 
‘R
ev
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 W
or
k 
Pr
og
ra
m
m
e’
.  
 

 It 
is
 s
ug
ge
st
ed
 th
at
 th
er
e 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
fo
ur
 s
ho
rt 
re
po
rts
. I
 h
av
e 
at
ta
ch
ed
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
re
po
rts
: 

RE
PO

RT
 1
 - 
Li
st
s 
al
l t
he
 is
su
es
 th
e 
co
m
m
itt
ee
 a
gr
ee
d 
to
 in
cl
ud
e 
in
 th
ei
r W

or
k 
Pr
og
ra
m
m
e:
 

Th
is
 re
po
rt 
lis
ts
 a
ll 
ite
m
s 
th
at
 h
av
e 
be
en
 s
el
ec
te
d 
by
 th
e 
Co
m
m
itt
ee
 fo
r i
nc
lu
si
on
 o
n 
th
e 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 y
ea
r. 

It 
al
so
 in
cl
ud
es
 it
em

s,
 s
uc
h 
as
 p
re
vi
ou
s 
Pa
ne
l R
ev
ie
w
s,
 w
he
re
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 m
ad
e 
to
 C
ab
in
et
. I
t i
s 
im
po
rta
nt
 th
at
 th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
es
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 is
 m
on
ito
re
d.
 O
th
er
w
is
e 
th
er
e 
is
 n
o 
m
ea
su
re
 o
f t
he
 s
uc
ce
ss
 o
f s
cr
ut
in
y.
 

Fo
r e
ac
h 
ite
m
 o
n 
th
e 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e,
 th
e 
re
po
rt 
gi
ve
s 
a 
de
sc
rip
tio
n,
 a
n 
in
di
ca
tio
n 
of
 h
ow
 th
e 
ite
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
de
al
t w
ith
, a
 w
he
re
 p
os
si
bl
e 
a 
re
la
tiv
e 
tim

es
ca
le
 fo
r 

th
e 
w
or
k 
an
d 
br
ie
f c
om

m
en
ts
 o
n 
pr
og
re
ss
.  

RE
PO

RT
 2
 - 
Su
gg
es
tio
ns
 fo
r A
dd
iti
on
s 
to
 W
or
k 
Pr
og
ra
m
m
e  

Th
e 
W
or
k 
Pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
Co
m
m
itt
ee
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 r
ev
ie
w
ed
 a
t 
ea
ch
 m
ee
tin
g.
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
m
em
be
rs
 h
av
in
g 
th
e 
op
po
rtu
ni
ty
 t
o 
as
k 
fo
r 
ne
w
 It
em
s 
to
 b
e 

ad
de
d 
to
 th
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 T
hi
s 
re
po
rt 
w
ill
 li
st
 a
ny
 n
ew
ly
 s
ug
ge
st
ed
 it
em
s.
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 w
ill
 th
en
 h
av
e 
th
e 
op
po
rtu
ni
ty
 to
 a
gr
ee
 (o
r n
ot
) f
or
 th
em

 to
 b
e 
ad
de
d 
to
 th
e 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
  

RE
PO

RT
 3
  -
 P
ro
po
se
d 
O
ut
lin
e 
M
ee
tin
g 
Sc
he
du
le
 fo
r t
he
 M
un
ic
ip
al
 Y
ea
r  

Th
e 
re
po
rt 
lis
ts
 t
ho
se
 it
em

s 
w
hi
ch
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
 t
o 
be
 o
n 
th
e 
m
ee
tin
g 
ag
en
da
. T
hi
s 
w
ill
 g
iv
e 
th
e 
op
po
rtu
ni
ty
 f
or
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
em

be
rs
 t
o 
ta
ke
 a
 g
re
at
er
 le
ad
 in
 

or
ga
ni
si
ng
 th
ei
r w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

RE
PO

RT
 4
  -
 P
ro
gr
es
s 
Re
po
rt 
on
 In
-D
ep
th
 P
an
el
 R
ev
ie
w
s 

Th
is
 re
po
rt 
w
ill
 g
iv
e 
a 
ve
ry
 b
rie
f u
pd
at
e 
on
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
/ t
im
es
ca
le
s 
fo
r i
n-
de
pt
h 
pa
ne
l r
ev
ie
w
s 
w
hi
ch
 a
re
 in
 th
e 
‘o
w
ne
rs
hi
p’
 o
f t
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 67



R
ep
o
rt
 1
 

M
O
N
IT
O
R
IN
G
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 F
O
R
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 W
O
R
K
 

P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
01
0/
20
11
 

(U
PD
AT
ES
 IN
 R
ED
) 

D
at
e 
o
f 
it
em
 

T
o
p
ic
 D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

H
o
w
 t
h
e 
to
p
ic
 w
ill
 b
e 
d
ea
lt
 

w
it
h
 

C
o
m
m
en
ts
 o
n
 P
ro
g
re
ss
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
H
o
sp
it
al
 D
is
ch
ar
g
e 
R
ev
ie
w
/D
is
ch
ar
g
e 

T
u
rn
ar
o
u
n
d
 T
ea
m
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

F
u
rt
h
er
 r
ep
o
rt
 d
u
e 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
‘D
is
ch
ar
g
e 

T
u
rn
ar
o
u
n
d
 T
ea
m
’ i
n
 S
ep
t 
20
10
. 

T
h
is
 is
 n
ow
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 it
em
  

(T
h
es
e 
ar
e 
al
l 
re
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
so
m
e 
ti
m
e)
 

Ju
n
e 

20
10
?
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
  
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
ci
al
 C
ar
e 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 J
A
N
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

Fu
rth
er
 O
ffi
ce
r 
Re
po
rt 
to
 t
he
 c
om

m
itt
ee
 –
 

da
te
 to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 

tb
a 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 o
n
 ‘r
ed
’ 

o
r 
‘a
m
b
er
.’ 

Th
at
 t
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 lo
ok
 a
t 
th
os
e 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
di
ca
to
rs
 

ei
th
er
 o
n 
re
d 
or
 a
m
be
r 
an
d 
ei
th
er
 d
et
er
io
ra
tin
g 
or
 n
ot
 

im
pr
ov
in
g 
an
d 
re
qu
es
ts
 m
or
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
re
po
rts
 o
n 
th
es
e 
an
d 

th
es
e 
be
 in
cl
ud
ed
 in
 th
e 
Co
m
m
itt
ee
’s
 w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

D
et
ai
le
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
s 

O
ff
ic
er
 
R
ep
o
rt
s 
to
 
N
o
v,
 
JA
N
 
&
 

M
ar
ch
 M
ee
ti
n
g
s 

 
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
P
ro
st
ra
te
 C
an
ce
r 
in
 W
al
la
se
y 
an
d
 M
o
re
to
n
 

Re
po
rt 

by
 
Jo
in
t 
Di
re
ct
or
 
of
 
Pu
bl
ic
 

He
al
th
- 

 
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
A
lc
o
h
o
l R
el
at
ed
 H
o
sp
it
al
 A
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

T
h
is
 is
 n
ow
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 it
em
 

(T
h
es
e 
ar
e 
al
l 
re
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
so
m
e 
ti
m
e)
 

 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
Y
o
u
r 
R
ea
so
n
, y
o
u
r 
w
ay
- 
re
d
u
ci
n
g
 s
m
o
ki
n
g
 

ca
m
p
ai
g
n
.  

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

T
h
is
 is
 n
ow
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 it
em
. 

(T
h
es
e 
ar
e 
al
l 
re
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
so
m
e 
ti
m
e)
 

 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
 V
C
A
W
 "
O
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
sp
it
al
 S
ch
em
e”
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

T
h
is
 is
 n
ow
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 it
em
 

(T
h
es
e 
ar
e 
al
l 
re
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
so
m
e 
ti
m
e)
 

 

Page 68



21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 
 H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d
 H
ea
lt
h
 r
ep
o
rt
. 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

T
h
is
 is
 n
ow
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 it
em
 

(T
h
es
e 
ar
e 
al
l 
re
p
o
rt
s 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
av
e 
b
ee
n 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
so
m
e 
ti
m
e)
 

 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 

T
h
e 
im
p
ac
t 
o
f 
th
e 
b
u
d
g
et
 o
n
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 

 
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 

C
h
ir
o
p
o
d
y 
se
rv
ic
es
. 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 

 
 

21
S
T
 J
U
N
E
 

R
ep
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 h
ea
lt
h
 c
o
lle
ag
u
es
 o
n
 t
h
e 
C
o
al
it
io
n
 

G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t’
s 
ch
an
g
es
 t
o
 t
h
e 
h
ea
lt
h
 s
er
vi
ce
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 J
A
N
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

§ §§§ 
C
o
n
tr
ac
ts
 f
o
r 
P
er
so
n
al
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
   

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
o
f 
F
o
rw
ar
d
 P
la
n
 

R
ep
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 M
ik
e 
F
o
w
le
r 
to
 N
O
V
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

§ §§§ 
P
er
so
n
al
 B
u
d
g
et
s 
P
h
as
e 
3 
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
o
f 
F
o
rw
ar
d
 P
la
n
 

R
ep
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 F
ra
n
ce
sc
a 
T
o
m
lin
 t
o
 

JA
N
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

§ §§§ 
T
h
ir
d
 S
ec
to
r 
C
o
n
tr
ac
ts
  

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
o
f 
F
o
rw
ar
d
 P
la
n
 

R
ep
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 M
au
ra
 N
o
o
n
e 
to
 J
A
N
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

§ §§§ 
M
em
b
er
 T
ra
in
in
g
 S
es
si
o
n
s.
 

M
em
b
er
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

  
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

T
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
re
ce
iv
ed
 a
n
 u
p
d
at
e 
o
n
 it
s 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e,
 w
h
ic
h
 in
cl
u
d
ed
 t
h
e 
p
ro
p
o
se
d
 

o
u
tl
in
e 
m
ee
ti
n
g
 s
ch
ed
u
le
 f
o
r 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

m
u
n
ic
ip
al
 y
ea
r.
 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 it
em
s 
o
n
 t
h
e 
W
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
al
re
ad
y,
 t
h
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 it
em
s 
w
er
e 

ad
d
ed
:.
 

 
 

 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
 

1.
 
A
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 o
n
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 t
o
 c
lie
n
ts
 

as
 id
en
ti
fi
ed
 in
 P
ID
A
 

R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 J
A
N
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
E
P
T
. 

2.
 
A
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
d
iv
er
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 
o
n
 

o
ff
er
 i
n
 c
ar
e 
h
o
m
es
 t
o
 b
e 
in
co
rp
o
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 

th
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 c
o
n
tr
ac
ts
 f
o
r 
p
er
so
n
al
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 

 
 

9t
h
 S
ep
t 

3.
 
T
h
e 
vi
si
t 
to
 t
al
k 
to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
eo
p
le
 c
o
m
in
g
 u
p
 

to
 t
ra
n
si
ti
o
n
.  

 
 

 

9t
h
 S
ep
t 

4.
 
P
ro
g
re
ss
 
to
 
si
n
g
le
 
se
x 
w
ar
d
s 
- 
fo
llo
w
 
u
p
 

re
p
o
rt
. 

R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 M
A
R
C
H
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

 
 

Page 69



9t
h
 S
ep
t 

5.
 
E
xp
lo
re
 t
h
e 
o
ff
er
 o
f 
tr
ai
n
in
g
 t
o
 m
em
b
er
s 
b
y 

N
IC
E
 

M
em
b
er
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 
 

1s
t  N
O
V
 

T
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
re
ce
iv
ed
 a
n
 u
p
d
at
e 
o
n
 i
ts
 

w
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e,
 
w
h
ic
h
 
in
cl
u
d
ed
 
th
e 

p
ro
p
o
se
d
 o
u
tl
in
e 
m
ee
ti
n
g
 s
ch
ed
u
le
 f
o
r 
th
e 

cu
rr
en
t 
m
u
n
ic
ip
al
 y
ea
r.
 T
h
e 
C
h
ai
r 
re
fe
rr
ed
 

to
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d
 H
ea
lt
h 

w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 n
o
w
 b
e 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e 
Ja
n
u
ar
y 

m
ee
ti
n
g
. 

In
 
ad
d
it
io
n
 
to
 
it
em
s 

al
re
ad
y 

o
n
 
th
e 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e,
 
th
e 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 
it
em
s 

w
er
e 

ad
d
ed
: 

§ §§§ 
A
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
th
e 
im
p
ac
t 
o
f 
th
e 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t’
s 

C
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 
S
p
en
d
in
g
 
R
ev
ie
w
 
an
d
 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

al
lo
ca
ti
o
n
 
fo
r 
W
ir
ra
l’s
 
A
d
u
lt
 
S
o
ci
al
 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

(J
an
u
ar
y 
m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

§ §§§ 
A
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
th
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 
o
f 
ap
p
lic
at
io
n
s 
fo
r 

se
ve
ra
n
ce
 
/ 
E
V
R
 
an
d
 
h
o
w
 
it
 
w
o
u
ld
 
af
fe
ct
 
th
e 

D
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
(J
an
u
ar
y 
m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

§ §§§ 
F
o
llo
w
 
u
p
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
al
co
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 
h
o
sp
it
al
 

ad
m
is
si
o
n
s 
(M
ar
ch
 m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

T
h
e 
C
h
ai
r 
re
fe
rr
ed
 t
o
 t
h
e 
C
Q
C
 W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 w
h
ic
h
 

w
o
u
ld
 r
ep
o
rt
 b
ac
k 
to
 t
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
in
 J
an
u
ar
y 
an
d
 

al
so
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
D
o
m
es
ti
c 
V
io
le
n
ce
 P
an
el
 h
ad
 h
el
d
 i
ts
 

fi
rs
t 
m
ee
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e 
m
ee
ti
n
g
 a
g
ai
n
 a
t 
th
e 
en
d
 

o
f 
N
o
ve
m
b
er
. 

R
es
o
lv
ed
 –
 T
h
at
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s 
to
 t
h
e 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
b
e 
n
o
te
d
 

 

 
 

 

1s
t  N
O
V
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l R
el
at
ed
 H
o
sp
it
al
 A
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

M
in
u
te
s:
 

T
h
e 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 
H
ea
lt
h
 
su
b
m
it
te
d
 
a 

re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e 
N
H
S
 W
ir
ra
l 
A
lc
o
h
o
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 

w
h
ic
h
 
ai
m
ed
 
to
 
ad
d
re
ss
 
al
co
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
ar
m
, 
im
p
ro
ve
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
tr
ea
tm
en
t 

se
rv
ic
es
 

an
d
 

re
d
u
ce
 

al
co
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

ad
m
is
si
o
n
s.
 

T
h
e 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
so
u
g
h
t 
to
 
ac
h
ie
ve
 
th
e 

N
at
io
n
al
 I
n
d
ic
at
o
r 
to
 d
ec
re
as
e 
th
e 
ra
te
 o
f 

al
co
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 
h
o
sp
it
al
 
ad
m
is
si
o
n
s 
p
er
 

10
0,
00
0 

o
f 

th
e 

ad
u
lt
 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 
b
y 

d
el
iv
er
in
g
 t
h
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 in
it
ia
ti
ve
s:
 

 

Page 70



 
 

 
D
el
iv
er
in
g
 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
ts
 
in
 
p
ri
m
ar
y 
ca
re
 

sc
re
en
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ri
ef
 in
te
rv
en
ti
o
n
 

§ §§§ 
In
cr
ea
si
n
g
 c
ap
ac
it
y 
in
 s
p
ec
ia
lis
t 
al
co
h
o
l 

tr
ea
tm
en
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
es
 

§ §§§ 
In
cr
ea
si
n
g
 
th
e 
ca
p
ac
it
y 
o
f 
co
m
m
u
n
it
y-

b
as
ed
 
d
et
o
xi
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 
se
rv
ic
es
 
(t
o
 
h
el
p
 

p
re
ve
n
t 
re
-a
d
m
is
si
o
n
) 

§ §§§ 
Im
p
ro
ve
 c
ri
si
s 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 
re
sp
o
n
se
s 

§ §§§ 
In
cr
ea
se
 c
ap
ac
it
y 
in
 a
ft
er
ca
re
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

§ §§§ 
P
ro
vi
d
e 
in
te
rv
en
ti
o
n
s 
in
 
th
e 
cr
im
in
al
 

ju
st
ic
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

§ §§§ 
In
cr
ea
se
 t
h
e 
p
ro
vi
si
o
n
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 a
n
d
 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
ra
is
in
g
 

T
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 c
o
m
p
ar
at
iv
e 
d
at
a 
w
it
h
 

n
ei
g
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

au
th
o
ri
ti
es
 

an
d
 

fi
g
u
re
s 

sh
o
w
in
g
 
th
at
 
th
e 
ra
te
 
o
f 
ad
m
is
si
o
n
s 
w
as
 

sl
o
w
in
g
 d
o
w
n
. 

R
es
p
o
n
d
in
g
 
to
 
co
m
m
en
ts
 
fr
o
m
 
M
em
b
er
s 

b
o
th
 t
h
e 
D
ir
ec
to
r 
an
d
 D
r 
M
u
kh
er
je
e 
st
at
ed
 

th
at
 t
h
er
e 
w
as
 n
o
 d
o
u
b
t 
o
f 
th
e 
h
ea
lt
h
 e
ff
ec
ts
 

o
f 
h
az
ar
d
o
u
s 
an
d
 
d
ep
en
d
en
t 
al
co
h
o
l 
u
se
 

le
ad
in
g
 
to
 
g
as
tr
o
-i
n
te
st
in
al
 
d
is
ea
se
s,
 
liv
er
 

d
is
ea
se
, 
ca
n
ce
r 
an
d
 c
ar
d
io
-v
as
cu
la
r 
d
is
ea
se
. 

T
h
ey
 e
m
p
h
as
is
ed
 t
h
e 
n
ee
d
 t
o
 m
ak
e 
p
eo
p
le
 

aw
ar
e 
o
f 
th
e 
d
an
g
er
s 
o
f 
al
co
h
o
l a
b
u
se
 a
n
d
 o
f 

in
it
ia
ti
ve
s 
to
 r
ed
u
ce
 a
lc
o
h
o
l d
ep
en
d
en
ce
. 

T
h
e 
C
h
ai
r 
su
g
g
es
te
d
 t
h
at
 a
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 r
ep
o
rt
 

co
u
ld
 b
e 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e 
M
ar
ch
 m
ee
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
 

R
es
o
lv
ed
 –
 T
h
at
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 b
e 
n
o
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
 

fu
rt
h
er
 r
ep
o
rt
 b
e 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e 
M
ar
ch
, 
20
11
 

m
ee
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
is
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
 

 

 

1s
t  N
O
V
 

 V
C
A
W
 "
O
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
sp
it
al
 S
ch
em
e”
 

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

M
in
u
te
s:
 

T
h
e 
C
h
ai
r 
in
fo
rm
ed
 t
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
th
at
 K
ar
en
 

P
ri
o
r 
fr
o
m
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
A
ct
io
n
 

W
ir
ra
l 
h
ad
 s
en
t 
h
er
 a
p
o
lo
g
ie
s 
as
 s
h
e 
w
as
 

u
n
w
el
l a
n
d
 u
n
ab
le
 t
o
 a
tt
en
d
 t
h
e 
m
ee
ti
n
g
. 

T
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
re
ce
iv
ed
 a
 q
u
ar
te
rl
y 
re
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
A
ct
io
n
 W
ir
ra
l 

(V
C
A
W
) 
o
n
 t
h
e 
‘H
o
m
e 
fr
o
m
 H
o
sp
it
al
’ 
se
rv
ic
e 

w
h
ic
h
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th
e 

m
o
n
th
s 

o
f 
Ju
ly
 
to
 

S
ep
te
m
b
er
, 2
01
0 
h
ad
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 1
63
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
. 

 

Page 71



 
 

 
T
h
es
e 
h
ad
 r
es
u
lt
ed
 in
 4
30
 c
o
n
ta
ct
s,
 a
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 

b
ei
n
g
 a
 h
o
m
e 
vi
si
t 
an
d
 a
 c
h
ec
k 
th
at
 t
h
e 
cl
ie
n
t 

w
as
 a
lr
ig
h
t.
 

T
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
ex
p
re
ss
ed
 it
s 
co
n
g
ra
tu
la
ti
o
n
s 

to
 V
C
A
W
 f
o
r 
th
is
 v
al
u
ab
le
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 

C
h
ai
r 
re
q
u
es
te
d
 i
n
fo
rm
at
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 

ca
p
ac
it
y 
to
 e
xt
en
d
 t
h
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
fu
rt
h
er
 a
n
d
 o
f 

h
o
w
 
m
u
ch
 
aw
ar
en
es
s 
th
er
e 
w
as
 
o
f 
th
e 

se
rv
ic
e.
 

 R
es
o
lv
ed
 –
 T
h
at
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 b
e 
n
o
te
d
 a
n
d
 

th
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
b
e 
re
q
u
es
te
d
 

fr
o
m
 V
C
A
W
 

 

 

1s
t  N
O
V
 

Y
o
u
r 
R
ea
so
n
, y
o
u
r 
w
ay
- 
re
d
u
ci
n
g
 s
m
o
ki
n
g
 

ca
m
p
ai
g
n
.  

O
ff
ic
er
 R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 N
o
v 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

M
in
u
te
s:
 

T
he

 D
ire

ct
or
 o
f 
P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 s
ub

m
itt
ed

 a
 r
ep

or
t 

on
 t
he

 s
oc

ia
l 
m
ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m
pa

ig
n,
 ‘
Q
ui
t 
S
to
p 

W
irr
al
’ 
w
hi
ch

, 
in
 a

dd
iti
on

 t
o 

th
e 

S
to
p 

S
m
ok

in
g 

S
er
vi
ce

, 
ta
rg
et
ed

 s
m
ok

er
s 
fr
om

 d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re
as

 
an

d 
th
os

e 
w
ith

 r
ou

tin
e 
an

d 
m
an

ua
l 
oc

cu
pa

tio
ns

 
w
ho

 
w
ou

ld
 
no

t 
no

rm
al
ly
 
en

ga
ge

 
w
ith

 
N
H
S
 

se
rv
ic
es

. 
S
he

 
ga

ve
 
de

ta
ils
 
of
 
th
e 

ca
m
pa

ig
n 

w
hi
ch

 h
ad

 s
o 

fa
r 
en

ga
ge

d 
w
ith

 2
38

9 
pe

op
le
, 

60
%
 o

f 
w
ho

m
 w

er
e 

fr
om

 a
re
as

 o
f 
de

pr
iv
at
io
n 

an
d 
re
sp

on
de

d 
to
 c
om

m
en

ts
 fr
om

 M
em

be
rs
. 

 R
es
o
lv
ed
 –
 T
h
at
 t
h
e 
re
p
o
rt
 b
e 
n
o
te
d
. 

 

1s
t  N
O
V
 

C
o
n
tr
ac
ts
 f
o
r 
P
er
so
n
al
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
   

R
ep
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 M
ik
e 
F
o
w
le
r 
to
 

N
O
V
 M
ee
ti
n
g
 

M
in
u
te
s:
 

T
he

 
In
te
rim

 
D
ire

ct
or
 
of
 
A
du

lt 
S
oc

ia
l 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
su

bm
itt
ed

 a
 r
ep

or
t 
up

da
tin

g 
th
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee

 o
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 
to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

ne
w
 

ou
tc
om

e 
ba

se
d 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 

fo
r 
pe

rs
on

al
 
su

pp
or
t 
as

 
pa

rt
 
of
 
th
e 

tr
an

sf
or
m
at
io
n 

of
 
ad

ul
t 
so

ci
al
 
se

rv
ic
es

. 
T
he

se
 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 

co
ve

re
d 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

an
d 

N
ur
si
ng

 
H
om

e 
C
ar
e,
 
S
up

po
rt
ed

 
Li
vi
ng

 
an

d 
P
er
so

na
l 

S
up

po
rt
 p
ro
vi
de

d 
to
 p
eo

pl
e 
in
 th

ei
r 
ow

n 
ho

m
es

. 

T
he

 
re
po

rt
 
fo
cu

se
d 

on
 
th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 
th
e 

ex
is
tin

g 
se

rv
ic
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

co
nt
ex

t 
of
 

m
an

ag
in
g 

th
e 

m
ar
ke

t 
an

d 
th
e 

br
oa

de
r 

tr
an

sf
or
m
at
io
n 
ag

en
da

 fo
r 
A
du

lt 
S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi
ce

s 

T
he

 
pr
op

os
ed

 
ch

an
ge

s 
w
er
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
es

se
nt
ia
l 
to
 
im

pr
ov

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di
ng

, 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a
nd

 o
ffe

rin
g 
m
or
e 
ch

oi
ce

s 
fo
r 
pe

op
le
 t
o 

en
ab

le
 th

em
 to

 ta
ke

 c
on

tr
ol
 o
ve

r 
th
ei
r 
liv
es

. 

 

Page 72



 
 

 
T
he

 a
im

 w
as

 t
o 
ha

ve
 t
he

 n
ew

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 in

 p
la
ce

 
by

 1
 A
pr
il 
20

11
. 

T
he

 
D
ire

ct
or
 
re
sp

on
de

d 
to
 
co

m
m
en

ts
 
fr
om

 
M
em

be
rs
, 
in
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 w

ith
 r
eg

ar
d 
to
 o
ne

 o
f 
th
e 

cu
rr
en

t 
fin

an
ci
al
 p

re
ss
ur
es

 b
ei
ng

 f
ac

ed
 b

y 
th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 
of
 th

e 
in
cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
r 
of
 o
ld
er
 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 
w
er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 
se

lf-
fu
nd

ed
 
an

d 
en

te
re
d 

re
si
de

nt
ia
l 

or
 
nu

rs
in
g 

ho
m
e 

ca
re
 
w
ith

ou
t 

a 
st
at
ut
or
y 
as

se
ss
m
en

t. 
T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 
ha

d 
no

 o
pt
io
n 

bu
t 
to
 
of
fe
r 
fin

an
ci
al
 s

up
po

rt
 
to
 
th
es

e 
pe

op
le
 

w
he

n 
th
ei
r 
re
so

ur
ce

s 
ra
n 
ou

t. 
T
he

 n
ew

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w
ou

ld
 a
im

 to
 li
m
it 
th
is
 fi
na

nc
ia
l r
is
k 
to
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
il 

by
 e
nc

ou
ra
gi
ng

 p
ro
vi
de

rs
 t
o 
be

 a
ss
ur
ed

 p
riv

at
e 

pa
ye

rs
 h
ad

 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 f
un

ds
 t
o 
pa

y 
fo
r 
th
ei
r 
ca

re
 

fo
r 
as

 lo
ng

 a
s 
th
ey

 w
er
e 
lik
el
y 
to
 n
ee

d 
it.
 

R
es
o
lv
ed
 -
 T
h
at
 t
h
e 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
n
o
te
 t
h
e 

p
ro
g
re
ss
 
in
 
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g
 
th
e 

n
ew
 

co
n
tr
ac
ts
 
fo
r 
R
es
id
en
ti
al
 
an
d
 
N
u
rs
in
g
 

H
o
m
e 
C
ar
e 
an
d
 
P
er
so
n
al
 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 
in
 

p
eo
p
le
’s
 o
w
n
 h
o
m
es
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 73



R
ep
o
rt
 2
 

S
U
G
G
E
S
T
IO
N
S
 F
O
R
 A
D
D
IT
IO
N
S
 T
O
 W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 F
O
R
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 W
E
L
L
B
E
IN
G
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
01
0/
20
11
  

 

T
o
p
ic
 D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

T
o
p
ic
 s
u
g
g
es
te
d
 b
y 

H
o
w
 t
h
e 
to
p
ic
 w
ill
 b
e 
d
ea
lt
 w
it
h
 

E
st
im
at
ed
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

D
at
e 

T
h
e 
C
h
ai
r 
h
as
 
re
q
u
es
te
d
 
a 
re
p
o
rt
 
to
 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
o
n
 t
h
e 
D
H
 c
ir
cu
la
r 
d
u
e 
O
ct
o
b
er
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

g
iv
e 
g
u
id
an
ce
 
o
n
 
ro
le
 
an
d
 
m
ak
eu
p
 
o
f 
th
e 
n
ew
 

H
ea
lt
h
W
at
ch
, w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 r
ep
la
ce
 L
in
ks
 in
 2
01
2.
  

 

C
h
ai
r 

C
at
h
y 
G
ill
 
w
ill
 
co
m
p
ile
 
a 
re
p
o
rt
 

w
h
ic
h
 
an
al
ys
es
 
th
e 

co
n
te
n
t,
 

p
ro
b
ab
ly
 f
o
r 
th
e 
Ja
n
. M
ee
ti
n
g
. 

 

 

A
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
th
e 

im
p
ac
t 
o
f 
th
e 

G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t’
s 

C
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 
S
p
en
d
in
g
 
R
ev
ie
w
 
an
d
 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

al
lo
ca
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
W
ir
ra
l’s
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
(J
an
u
ar
y 

m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

 

M
ee
tin
g 
1s
t  N
O
V 

O
ffi
ce
r r
ep
or
t 

 

A
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
ap
p
lic
at
io
n
s 
fo
r 
se
ve
ra
n
ce
 /
 

E
V
R
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 a
ff
ec
t 
th
e 
D
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
(J
an
u
ar
y 

m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

 

M
ee
tin
g 
1s
t  N
O
V 

O
ffi
ce
r r
ep
or
t 

 

F
o
llo
w
 
u
p
 
re
p
o
rt
 
o
n
 
al
co
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 
h
o
sp
it
al
 

ad
m
is
si
o
n
s 
(M
ar
ch
 m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

 

M
ee
tin
g 
1s
t  N
O
V 

O
ffi
ce
r r
ep
or
t 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 74



R
ep
o
rt
 3
 

P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 O
U
T
L
IN
E
 M
E
E
T
IN
G
 S
C
H
E
D
U
L
E
 F
O
R
 T
H
E
 M
U
N
IC
IP
A
L
 Y
E
A
R
  

H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 W
E
L
L
 B
E
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 2
01
0/
20
11
 

 

M
ee
tin
g 
Da
te
 

To
pi
c 
De
sc
rip
tio
n 

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
H
o
sp
it
al
 d
is
ch
ar
g
e 
re
vi
ew
 f
ro
m
 D
is
ch
ar
g
e 
tu
rn
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
ea
m
 

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
A
lc
o
h
o
l r
el
at
ed
  h
o
sp
it
al
 a
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
Y
o
u
r 
re
as
o
n
, Y
o
u
r 
w
ay
. S
m
o
ki
n
g
 r
ed
u
ct
io
n
 c
am
p
ai
g
n
  

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
V
C
A
W
 "
 O
u
t 
o
f 
H
o
sp
it
al
 S
ch
em
e"
 

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d
 H
ea
lt
h
  

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
C
o
n
tr
ac
ts
 f
o
r 
p
er
so
n
al
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

1s
t 
N
o
v 
20
10
 

§ §§§ 
R
eg
u
la
r 
p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
ep
o
rt
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
ci
al
 C
ar
e 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
R
eg
u
la
r 
p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
ep
o
rt
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
P
ro
g
re
ss
 o
n
 T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
in
g
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
" 
O
p
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
C
h
an
g
e"
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 im
p
ac
t 
, 
lo
ca
lly
, 
o
f 
G
o
vt
. 
sp
en
d
in
g
 p
la
n
s 
ac
ro
ss
 H
ea
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

S
o
ci
al
 C
ar
e 
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 i
m
p
ac
t,
 l
o
ca
lly
, 
o
f 
G
o
vt
 p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 o
f 
N
H
S
 a
s 
th
ey
 a
re
 

re
ve
al
ed
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
ss
ed
 

Page 75



18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
P
h
as
e 
3 
p
er
so
n
al
 b
u
d
g
et
s 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
3r
d
 S
ec
to
r 
co
n
tr
ac
ts
  

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
R
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 p
ay
m
en
t 
to
 c
la
im
en
ts
 in
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt
 o
f 
P
ID
A
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
R
ep
o
rt
 
o
n
 
H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
an
d
 
H
ea
lt
h
 
w
ill
 
n
o
w
 
b
e 
b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 
th
e 
Ja
n
u
ar
y 

m
ee
ti
n
g
. 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
A
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e 
n
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
ap
p
lic
at
io
n
s 
fo
r 
se
ve
ra
n
ce
 /
 E
V
R
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
o
u
ld
 

af
fe
ct
 t
h
e 
D
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
(J
an
u
ar
y 
m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

18
th
 J
an
 2
01
1 

w www
 
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 a
lc
o
h
o
l r
el
at
ed
 h
o
sp
it
al
 a
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 
(M
ar
ch
 m
ee
ti
n
g
).
 

22
n
d
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S SSS
 
R
eg
u
la
r 
p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
ep
o
rt
 

22
n
d
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S SSS
 
Im
p
ac
t 
o
f 
ch
an
g
es
 t
o
 IL
F
  

22
n
d
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S SSS
 
P
ro
g
re
ss
 o
n
 a
ch
ie
vi
n
g
 s
in
g
le
 s
ex
 h
o
sp
it
al
 w
ar
d
s 
 

22
n
d
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S SSS
 
A
t 
th
is
 t
im
e 
w
e 
w
o
u
ld
 h
o
p
e 
to
 b
e 
ab
le
 t
o
 b
e 
ab
le
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n
 P
an
el
 W
o
rk
 o
n
 

D
o
m
es
ti
c 
V
io
le
n
ce
. 

22
n
d
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

S SSS
 
A
lc
o
h
o
l R
el
at
ed
 H
o
sp
it
al
 A
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 76



R
ep
o
rt
 4
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 O
N
 IN
-D
E
P
T
H
 P
A
N
E
L
 R
E
V
IE
W
S
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 &
 W
E
L
L
 B
E
IN
G
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 &
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  

E
N
D
 O
F
 M
U
N
IC
IP
A
L
 Y
E
A
R
 2
00
9/
20
10
 -
 S
T
A
R
T
 O
F
 M
U
N
IC
IP
A
L
 Y
E
A
R
 2
01
0/
20
11
 

 

T
it
le
 o
f 
R
ev
ie
w
 

M
em
b
er
s 
o
f 
P
an
el
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 t
o
 D
at
e 

D
at
e 
D
u
e 
to
  

re
p
o
rt
 b
ac
k 

D
em
en
ti
a 
R
ev
ie
w
 

     

C
o
u
n
ci
llo
rs
 

A
n
n
 B
ri
d
so
n
 (
C
h
ai
r)
 

S
h
ei
la
 C
la
rk
e 
 

D
en
is
e 
R
o
b
er
ts
 

C
h
ri
s 
T
eg
g
in
 

 

Sc
op
e 
ag
re
ed
. 

Pl
an
ni
ng
 o
f r
ev
ie
w
 is
 o
ng
oi
ng
. 

‘E
vi
de
nc
e’
 g
at
he
rin
g 
m
ee
tin
gs
 h
av
e 
co
m
m
en
ce
d.
 

M
ee
tin
gs
 h
av
e 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
w
ith
 r
ep
re
se
nt
at
iv
es
 

of
 th
e 
Th
ird
 S
ec
to
r. 
 

A 
fo
cu
s 
gr
ou
p 
in
vo
lv
in
g 
ca
re
rs
 w
as
 h
el
d 
at
 t
he
 

De
vo
ns
hi
re
 C
en
tre
 (A
ge
 C
on
ce
rn
) 

 Up
da
te
 a
s 
at
 1
6/
02
/1
0:
 

A 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 
co
ns
ul
ta
nt
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

‘in
te
rv
ie
we
d’
 a
t A
rro
we
 P
ar
k 
ho
sp
ita
l a
nd
 a
t C
he
sh
ire
 

& 
W
irr
al
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 T
ru
st
. 

An
 in
di
vi
du
al
 m
ee
tin
g 
wi
th
 a
 c
ar
er
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
he
ld
. 

A 
m
ee
tin
g 
wi
th
 W
irr
al
 N
HS
 (P
CT
) h
as
 a
lso
 b
ee
n 
he
ld
. 

Fu
rth
er
 
m
ee
tin
gs
 
wi
th
 
ca
re
r 
gr
ou
ps
 
ar
e 

al
so
 

an
tic
ip
at
ed
. 

 Up
da
te
 a
s 
at
 0
1/
05
/1
0 

A 
‘fo
cu
s 
gr
ou
p’
 w
ith
 c
ar
er
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 h
el
d.
 

Fu
rth
er
 ‘
in
te
rv
ie
ws
’ 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
he
ld
 w
ith
 m
an
ag
er
s 

an
d 
co
ns
ul
ta
nt
s 
at
 A
rro
we
 P
ar
k 
ho
sp
ita
l 
an
d 
at
 

Ch
es
hi
re
 &
 W
irr
al
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 T
ru
st
. 

 

 

20
10
 -
 2
01
1 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
at
io
n
 o
f 
D
em
en
ti
a 
R
ev
ie
w
 

An
n 
Br
id
so
n 
to
 
co
nt
in
ue
 
to
 
Ch
ai
r 
th
e 

re
vi
ew
. 

 
 

Page 77



 P
an
el
 o
n
 D
o
m
es
ti
c 
V
io
le
n
ce
 

C
o
u
n
ci
llo
rs
: 

M
o
ir
a 
M
c 
L
au
g
h
lin
 (
C
h
ai
r)
 

P
at
 G
la
ss
m
an
 

A
n
n
 B
ri
d
so
n
 

C
h
er
yl
 P
o
va
ll 

 

U
P
D
A
T
E
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 

§ §§§ 
A
 S
co
p
e 
D
o
cu
m
en
t 
is
 a
g
re
ed
. 

§ §§§ 
P
eo
p
le
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e 
P
u
b
lic
 
ag
en
ci
es
 
an
d
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
se
ct
o
r 
h
av
e 
jo
in
ed
 
th
e 
P
an
el
 

an
d
 a
tt
en
d
 t
h
e 
m
ee
ti
n
g
s.
  

§ §§§ 
P
eo
p
le
 f
ro
m
 w
it
h
in
 C
o
u
n
ci
l h
av
e 
as
ke
d
 t
o
 

b
e 
in
vo
lv
ed
 o
r 
w
e 
h
av
e 
as
ke
d
 t
h
em
 t
o
 

h
el
p
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
re
vi
ew
. 

§ §§§ 
P
an
el
 m
em
b
er
s 
h
av
e 
m
ad
e 
ar
ra
n
g
em
en
ts
 

fo
r 
vi
si
ts
 t
o
 M
A
R
A
C
, t
h
e 
W
o
m
en
`s
 R
ef
u
g
e 

th
e 
Z
er
o
 C
en
tr
e,
 F
S
U
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
R
h
yl
 C
en
tr
e.
 

§ §§§ 
T
h
e 
P
an
el
 
h
as
 
m
et
 
3 
ti
m
es
 
an
d
 
h
as
 

an
o
th
er
 m
ee
ti
n
g
 s
ch
ed
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Ja
n
u
ar
y.
  

 

Re
po
rt 
to
 M
ar
ch
 

20
11
 m
ee
tin
g 

 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e 

Im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 

P
la
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e 
C
Q
C
 In
sp
ec
ti
o
n
 

R
ep
o
rt
. 

C
o
u
n
ci
llo
rs
: 

T
o
n
y 
S
m
it
h
 

A
n
n
 B
ri
d
so
n
 

G
eo
ff
 W
at
t 

 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 a
rr
an
g
ed
 f
o
r 
T
h
u
rs
d
ay
 2
8t
h
 

O
ct
o
b
er
.  

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 78



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the  Cheshire and Wirral Councils' Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

held on Monday, 11th October, 2010 at Vauxhall Suite, Ellesmere Port Civic 
Hall, Civic Way, Ellesmere Port, CH65 0AZ 

 
PRESENT 
 
Councillor D Flude (Chairman) 
Councillor P Lott (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors D Beckett, C Andrew, C Beard, A Dawson, J Grimshaw, 
W Livesley, D Roberts, G Smith, R Thompson, G Watt, B Silvester and 
J Salter 

 
 

56 ALSO PRESENT  
 
Councillor C Tomlinson – Cheshire East Council; 
Councillor R Wilkins – Wirral Borough Council. 
 

57 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Wirral Councillor A Bridson (substitute 
- Councillor R Wilkins) and Cheshire East Councillor S Jones (substitute - 
Councillor C Tomlinson). 
 

58 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED: That the following declarations of interest be noted: 
 
• Councillor D Flude, personal interest on the grounds that she was a member 

of the Alzheimers Society and Cheshire Independent Advocacy; and 
• Councillor D Roberts, personal interest on the grounds that her daughter was 

an employee of the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

59 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 July 
2010 be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

60 OFFICERS PRESENT  
 
Avril Devaney, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
Ros Francke, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
Dr R Parhee, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
Denise French, Cheshire East Council 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 79



61 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S UPDATE  
 
The Committee considered the Chief Executive’s update report on the following 
items: 
 

• Primrose Avenue – following the consultation period the proposals to 
close Primrose Avenue Respite Unit had been reconfirmed by the Board 
of the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (CWP) and 
were to be re-presented to the Cheshire East Learning Disability 
Management Group on 16 October for reconfirmation.  All service users’ 
health respite needs would be reassessed and a needs assessment for 
carers also undertaken; this process would be done jointly with social care 
staff.  A decision around implementation dates  would be taken in 
November; 

• Soss Moss – this former hospital site had now been renamed the Alderley 
Unit and had planning permission for 45 low secure beds.  The CWP 
Board had confirmed that Dane Ward (a 15 bed low secure service for 
adult males with mental health needs currently provided from the 
Millbrook site, Macclesfield Hospital) would transfer to the first building to 
be constructed which would be a purpose built 15 bed low secure unit.  
Most patients staying at the unit would be longer term and the 
environment was more suitable with space for activities and more facilities 
available.  All safeguarding standards had been met.  A meeting with local 
Parish Councils had been held to provide information and answer queries 
and a further meeting would be held in the new year.  It was expected that 
the unit would be completed by 4 April 2011; 

• Medical Director – a jobshare appointment had been made to the post of 
Medical Director, and Dr Andy Cotgrove and Dr Anushta Sivananthan had 
been appointed and taken up the post at the beginning of August; 

• Annual Report 2009/10 and Annual Plan Summary 2010/13 – this was 
now available on the website. 

 
RESOLVED:  That: 
 

• the update be received; 
• a report be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee on definitions 

of low secure units, the types of services provided and the service users 
who access such services; 

• a visit be arranged to the Alderley Unit in the new year; and 
• a progress report be submitted to the next meeting on the integration of 

the Assertive Outreach Function into Community Mental Health Teams. 
 

62 28 RISELEY STREET, MACCLESFIELD - DECOMMISSIONING OF 
LEARNING DISABILITY RESPITE SERVICES  
 
The Committee considered a report on a Level 2 Substantial Development or 
Variation in Service. The proposal was to decommission learning disability respite 
services currently delivered at 28 Riseley Street, Macclesfield. 
 
The Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) had notified CWP of 
a reduction in income and in order to manage this reduction had worked with 
CWP to evaluate all services commissioned by the PCT and provided by CWP.  
All services had been reviewed using the same criteria and, using this 

Page 80



prioritisation process, it was proposed that the respite provision at Riseley Street 
cease to be provided. 
 
There were a range of respite options for people with learning disabilities living in 
central and eastern Cheshire – residential bed based services provided by CWP 
at Primrose Avenue, Crewe (due for closure), Crook Lane, Winsford and Riseley 
Street, Macclesfield. The Council’s social care team also provided respite at 
Warwick Mews, Macclesfield and Queen’s Drive, Nantwich.   People with learning 
disabilities were also able to access direct payments to choose their own 
provision.   
 
The proposed closure of Primrose Avenue had been subject to a consultation 
process and as part of the overall planning for the changes, had also confirmed 
eligibility criteria for health respite services provided by CWP. This agreed 
eligibility criteria and assessment process would be used to review the needs of 
all existing respite service users starting in September 2010.  Respite services 
provided by CWP in central and eastern Cheshire would then be allocated on the 
basis of the outcome of this assessment process and the resources available.  
Transitional arrangements would be put in place to enable a mix of health and 
social care respite to be provided by CWP for an agreed period of time. 
 
There were a small number of people affected by the closure of Riseley Street 
and this had enabled personalised consultation and future planning based on 
their needs, to be done. 
 
A report on this issue had also been submitted to Cheshire East’s Council OSC. 
 
During discussion of the item the following points were raised: 
 

• There was concern that there would be no learning disability respite in 
Cheshire East Borough and whether there would be a detrimental impact 
on the existing provision at Winsford; in response, Members were advised 
that outcomes tended to be better if services were accessed in the 
community, rather than building based, and such services were available.  
If social care respite was required this would be provided (by other 
partners such as the Council), it was only health respite that would no 
longer be available; 

• Who would monitor private provision?  In response, the Committee was 
reminded of the role of the Local Involvement Network who had powers to 
inspect provision through their Enter and View powers.   Also the Care 
Quality Commission’s role was to regulate providers and anybody who 
wished to could provide feedback to them on provision; 

• People may have to travel further to access respite and carers/friends 
would have further to travel to visit their family member.  The Committee 
was advised that as the number of people affected was small any 
travelling issues on individuals would be picked up through the individual 
assessment process. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the closure of the service at Riseley Street be noted. 
 

63 THE WILLOWS, MACCLESFIELD - PROPOSED CLOSURE  
 
The Committee considered a report on the proposed closure of The Willows, 
Macclesfield. 

Page 81



 
The Central and Eastern Cheshire Primary Care Trust (PCT) had notified CWP of 
a reduction in income and in order to manage this reduction had worked with 
CWP to evaluate all services commissioned by the PCT and provided by CWP.  
All services had been reviewed using the same criteria and, using this 
prioritisation process, it was proposed that The Willows be closed.   
 
The Willows offered day services to patients already under the Care Programme 
Approach (CPA) of a Community Mental Health Team (CMHT).  The service was 
provided to up to 115 patients in and around Macclesfield and was not accessed 
by service users from other areas.  The services offered included social skills 
training, computer literacy and horticulture and the operation of a small print 
workshop, all of which were offered in conjunction with external agencies.  All the 
services offered were available through other agencies such as the Council and 
service users would be supported to access these services.  Service users had 
been advised of the potential closure at an early stage to enable them to access 
courses starting in September if they wished.  The building belonged to the 
Council. 
 
The proposed closure had also been discussed at the Cheshire East Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.   
 
RESOLVED:  That the proposed closure and alternative arrangements for service 
users be noted. 
 

64 THE MILLBROOK UNIT, MACCLESFIELD - CONSOLIDATION OF 
MENTAL HEALTH INPATIENT SERVICES  
 
The Committee considered a report regarding the consolidation of mental health 
inpatient services at the Millbrook Unit, Macclesfield. 
 
A public consultation exercise had been carried out by the Cheshire and Wirral 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust on behalf of Central and Eastern Cheshire 
Primary Care Trust about consolidating Adult and Older People’s services from 
two sites to one in Central and Eastern Cheshire.  The results of the consultation 
exercise suggested broad approval to centralise onto a single site, support for 
continuing to develop new ways of working which would enable a reduction in 
inpatient beds and the expansion of community services and making investments 
to improve the patient environment. 
 
A number of changes were proposed: 
 

• Closure of the mental health inpatient unit at Leighton Hospital and 
transfer of services to either Millbrook Unit, Macclesfield or Bowmere 
Hospital, Chester.  There would be three acute inpatient wards at 
Millbrook and adaptations made to Bowmere to accommodate extra 
services; 

• The overall impact on inpatient beds was a reduction of 4; there would be 
no changes to bed numbers in Wirral during the implementation of the 
changes; 

• CWP remained committed to improving the patient environment in South 
East Cheshire and the re-provision project team would report on the 
options for delivering this in March 2011. 

 

Page 82



RESOLVED:  That the update report be noted. 
 

65 QUALITY ACCOUNT - QUARTERLY REPORT  
 
The Committee considered the Quality Quarterly Report which set out progress 
against each of the quality priorities identified in the Quality Account for 2009/10.   
 
All priorities identified for Patient Safety had been achieved for the first quarter 
and were on track for the remainder of the year.  For patient related performance 
CWP was performing on track or better when measured against key national 
priorities apart from in relation to the average length of stay which had increased.  
All targets for achieving quality improvement and innovation goals were also on 
course.  Targets relating to patient safety and patient experience were also 
achieved.  Members suggested that in future more ambitious targets may be 
needed and were advised that future targets would be more challenging. 
 
One area of concern was around the average length of stay (measured in days).  
The aspiration of the Trust was for this average to show a reduction but the actual 
position showed an increase from 18 days in April to 24 in July.  It was important 
that a service user’s care and treatment was in the least restrictive environment 
possible and the Crisis Resolution Home treatment team facilitated the earliest 
discharge possible.  The average length of stay would be monitored by the 
Trust’s Performance and Compliance Sub Committee. 
 
It was noted that medication errors and certain self harm incidents had increased 
along with minor injuries; Members were advised that minor injuries meant issues 
that could be dealt with on site without any need to go to Accident and 
Emergency.  Members requested that more information was included in future on 
what was meant by medication errors and self harm incidents so it was clear 
whether there were any significant issues in these areas.  It was noted that the 
Trust’s Suicide Prevention Strategy was currently being revised and would be 
considered at a future meeting. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

66 TRANSFORMING COMMUNITY SERVICES PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee considered a report on the Transforming Community Services 
programme as set out below: 
 

• In Central and Eastern Cheshire all provider services currently run by the 
Primary Care Trust (PCT) would transfer to the East Cheshire Hospital 
Trust, apart from some physiotherapists for the Learning Disability service 
who were to transfer to the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust (CWP); 

• In Wirral the provider services of the PCT would transfer to a social 
enterprise/community trust; 

• In Western Cheshire the provider services of the PCT would transfer to 
CWP. 

 
In each case the main changes related to how the services were be managed 
and service users should not experience any impact. 
 

Page 83



The proposals were currently under consideration by the Strategic Health 
Authority prior to implementation on 1 April 2011. 
 
RESOLVED: that the current position be noted. 
 

67 APPOINTMENT OF A CO-OPTED MEMBER  
 
The Committee considered a report on the appointment of a co-opted Member.   
 
The Committee’s Procedure Rules provided for the Committee to “co-opt other 
appropriate individuals, in a non voting capacity, to the Committee or for the 
duration of a particular review or scrutiny”.  The Committee had previously 
considered co-option and had agreed that further discussions should taken place 
with officers of CWP, through the mid point meeting, regarding Service User and 
Carers representation. 
 
The mid point meeting in September discussed the matter and expressed a 
preference for a service user rather than a carer to take up a co-opted place.  
CWP would be happy to progress this by contacting the patient members of the 
Patients and Public Involvement (PPI) Group to seek volunteers interested in 
taking up a co-opted place.   If a number of volunteers came forward, the PPI 
Task Force would be invited to assess the applications so as to put forward one 
person to serve as a co-opted member of the Committee together with one 
named substitute.  A co-opted member would not have voting rights.  In 
accordance with the National Code of Conduct for Members, the co-opted 
member would not be able to be a Member of the CWP Foundation Trust Board.  
This process could be carried out during autumn with the formal appointment 
being made at the next meeting on 10 January.  
 
RESOLVED:  That approval be given to the procedure set out in the report to 
appoint one non-voting co-opted Member and one named substitute onto the 
Committee to represent the interests of service users.   
 

68 WHITE PAPER - LIBERATING THE NHS  
 
The Committee considered a report on the key points outlined in the NHS White 
Paper – Liberating the NHS: Equity and Excellence.   
 
The White Paper contained 4 key themes: 
 

• Patients would be given more information and choice; 
• Health outcomes would be improved to among the best in the world; 
• Doctors would be empowered to deliver results – by being put in charge of 

what services best met the needs of local people; 
• Unnecessary bureaucracy would be removed, waste cut and the NHS 

made more efficient. 
 
The White Paper proposed the abolition of Strategic Health Authorities, by 2012, 
and Primary Care Trusts, by 2013.  GP consortia would be introduced to take 
over responsibility for commissioning most NHS services.  A new independent 
body – the NHS Commissioning Board – would be established to allocate and 
account for NHS resources, lead on quality improvements and promote patient 
involvement and choice.  Responsibility for public health would be transferred to 

Page 84



local authorities and a new consumer champion would be introduced known as 
HealthWatch. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the update on the NHS White Paper be received. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.30 pm and concluded at 4.00 pm 
 

Councillor D Flude (Chairman) 
 

 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Transformation of Adult Social Services - Personal Budgets Project Phase 2 Evaluation
	Personal Budgets Appendix

	5 Progress Report on Reimbursement in Relation to Public Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA)
	6 Transition Services - Update Report
	9 Commissioning and Procurement from the Voluntary Sector
	11 Committee Referral - Scrutiny Programme Board - 26 October, 2010
	12 Work Programme
	13 Minutes of the Cheshire and Wirral Council's Joint Scrutiny Committee

